Ra I & &
Consolidated Income Statement

HE_TZTF+-_A=+—HLEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
BdE F#ET FAT

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

F 2N Interest income 6 1,141,383 1,338,301
B H Interest expense 7 (170,802) (300,594)
- F RS DN Net interest income 970,581 1,037,707
HABYA Other income 8 587,799 231,588
ZERAN Operating income 1,558,380 1,269,295
KETH Operating expenses 9 (171,425) (157,836)
RIDRERTER E 5 Operating profit before impairment 1,386,955 1,111,459
DR E R Write-back of loan impairment allowances 12 16,663 36,837
SERF Operating profit 1,403,618 1,148,296
NI 5 FERE HlI SRR K Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,259 1,922
B % Rz F Profit before taxation 1,405,877 1,150,218
TN Taxation 13(a) (172,015) (144,186)
AEERH Profit for the year 1,233,862 1,006,032

R 5 Fl /(SiR) - Profit/(loss) attributable to:

RABRER Equity holders of the Company 1,233,532 1,006,469
IR SRR Non-controlling interest 330 (437)
1,233,862 1,006,032

PUREE S Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000

2558 & 137 ATEME R A MBS IREH—EB5 © The notes on pages 58 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

Statements.
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Consohdated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE_T-TFT_A=T—HIFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
BE FHET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
REEZ R Profit for the year 1,233,862 1,006,032
Hih2mikss : Other comprehensive income:
A B Available-for-sale securities:
- REYES 2 — unrealised net gains 31 143,631 227,272
- HENAFEERS — fair value changes transferred to income
TAM TR statement on disposal 31 (40,554) (3,522)

— B — tax effect 31 (17,307) (37,311)

- REIWE S — - unrealised net gains —

EEE AR jointly controlled entity 31 163 -

— iH — amortisation 31 1,809 2,381
&R Cash flow hedges:

- EEENGERIARX — net gains arising from hedges recognised

W 480 directly in equity 31 26,340 25,126

- BAREROAFEEZD) — fair value changes transferred to

income statement 31 (79) =

— B — tax effect 31 (4,333) (4,145)
BREFIML SRS =R Exchange differences on translation of

SLRZER foreign operations

- [fIE AR — subsidiary 4,309 157

— HEIEHIEAR — jointly controlled entity 31 13,108 1,279
NEFEE A4 W Other comprehensive income for the year,

BRI net of tax 127,087 211,237
AEELEWREE Total comprehensive income for the year 1,360,949 1,217,269
M G2 E RIS ER Total comprehensive income attributable to:

PIN/NG i Equity holders of the Company 1,360,188 1,217,707

AR HI AN AR 2R Non-controlling interest 761 (438)

1,360,949 1,217,269
F58F 137 RATEHMENGZEM SRR —E D © The notes on pages 58 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
Statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=E2—=FF+=-_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2010

58

2010 2009
fifsE FHT T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i ASSETS
N& REHE S Cash and short-term funds 17 5,902,649 4,067,798
RIUF) B B R Interest and remittance receivables 18 657,150 710,530
TESMIA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,396,621 1,317,375
RIAE B3 Loan portfolio, net 20 35,258,937 43,788,716
IEAER Investment securities:
- Al E — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,403,966 3,613,064
- BEZREIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,033,133 5,817,998
H R IR 5 Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 130,720 115,190
[ 7E 7 = Fixed assets 24 17,252 21,257
USRI ~ = e R H M3 = Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 27,659 32,595
BRK B = Reinsurance assets 27 204,891 266,101
#BreEEE Total assets 55,032,978 59,750,624
fafi LIABILITIES
RIS FILE Interest payable 493,553 445,787
RASIRIRN ~ R Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
=kl i liabilities 26 4,291,137 4274177
TESMITA Derivative financial instruments 19 44,372 158,246
AR Tax payable 13(b) 133,560 138,329
156 FEFR I 47 f5n Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 37,167 15,209
RE& AR Insurance liabilities 27 1,773,665 1,462,318
BEITHRFIUES Debt securities issued 28 39,127,735 44,495,073
BAITIEBIE S Mortgage-backed securities issued 29 1,529,749 2,020,394
AR Total liabilities 47,430,938 53,009,533
N EQUITY
NatsB ARG Capital and reserves attributable to the
BRA R i % equity holders:
i@ Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
IREB = F| Retained profits 4,561,624 3,925,694
MBS 6% & Contingency reserve 31 437,435 189,833
NEERS Fair value reserve 31 255,191 167,449
THA g & Hedging reserve 31 (23,757) (45,685)
SCHAES Translation reserve 31 9,866 (7,120)
LURAR B Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000
7,590,359 6,730,171
AT HIIR R 2 Non-controlling interest in equity 11,681 10,920
WEEE Total equity 7,602,040 6,741,091
WIS R S B &R Total equity and liabilities 55,032,978 59,750,624

EFEREET T ——FWA T+ BRUERERTNT -

BA#E5% NormanT. L. Chan

BIEE Deputy Chairman

2558 2 137 UMD I N A M SRR —3F 5 -

HITEE  Executive Director

Statements.

EEE Pang Sing Tong, Peter

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2011.

The notes on pages 58 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial
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Statement of Financial Position

F==2—FF+-_A=+—8”
as at 31 December 2010

2010 2009
5pz2 FET FHAIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i O ASSETS
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 17 5,769,509 3,924,752
RIUFI B KSR Interest and remittance receivables 18 645,232 698,809
PTESRHITE Derivative financial instruments 19 1,372,522 1,273,102
A S S Loan portfolio, net 20 31,392,398 40,817,163
AR Investment securities:
- A E — available-for-sale 21(a) 3,403,966 3,613,064
- FEZRIIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 8,033,133 5,817,998
D)ENCIE A Investment in subsidiaries 22 3,205,632 1,733,580
F B Bl SRR R Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 120,554 120,554
[&] 7 5 7= Fixed assets 24 15,980 19,000
TARTRRIN ~ dRE S E A7 7= Prepayments, deposits and other assets 25 29,220 36,681
BRK 7= Reinsurance assets 27 204,891 266,101
BreRiE Total assets 54,193,037 = 58,320,804
i LIABILITIES
IVERERS) Interest payable 491,231 442,217
RIFIRIN « RIS FF 2 & Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
E bt liabilities 26 4,792,266 4,910,949
MTEERHIA Derivative financial instruments 19 44,372 158,246
IVEREZAs Tax payable 13(b) 134,532 131,850
12 FEFL A 5T Deferred tax liabilities 13(b) 37,167 15,213
IRE& AR Insurance liabilities 27 1,773,665 1,462,318
B A TRFIUES Debt securities issued 28 39,405,886 44,495,073
RS ER Total liabilities 46,679,119 51,615,866
Wiz EQUITY
WNat58 AR S Capital and reserves attributable to the
AR ESR equity holders:
R&AS Share capital 30 2,000,000 2,000,000
{REE 5 A Retained profits 4,495,212 3,893,341
XUBS i & contingency reserve 31 437,435 189,833
NEERES Fair value reserve 31 255,028 167,449
PNl A= Hedging reserve 31 (23,757) (45,685)
BURAR S Proposed dividend 16 350,000 500,000
WIS EER Total equity 7,513,918 6,704,938
W R T RS ER Total equity and liabilities 54,193,037 = 58,320,804

EERETF T & A+ BbERENTT - Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2011.

EEEX Pang Sing Tong, Peter
MITEE

PRiER

/e

Norman T. L. Chan

Deputy Chairman Executive Director

% 58 = 137 WATEMDE RN FRAMSIRERA—3B 5 - The notes on pages 58 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

Statements.
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-ZZTET-_A=1T—HIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

55

ARARER S
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
R
DGR
AR R &R HithfE Non-
Share Retained Other controlling At
capital Profits * reserves interest Total
L)z FET FET TET TET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoFEFEAFE—HA—HESR Balance as at 1 January 2009 2,000,000 3,735,513 26,951 - 5,762,464
Ki&h/ﬁnﬂ/ (51) Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,006,469 - (437) 1,006,032
HEEIFAFR A FE RS Net fair value gains of available-
é‘ﬁ%}ﬁ B HIBRE I for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - - 188,820 - 188,820
B3 p Diaal= O ) DLl Net change in cash flow hedges,
BRI net of tax 31 - - 20,981 - 20,981
HREFIMNL S FEERC R Exchange differences on
ZH translation of foreign operations
- WERTA — subsidiary 31 - - 158 (1) 157
— HEHE SRR — jointly controlled entity 31 - = 1,279 = 1,279
AEELEREE B Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,006,469 211,238 (438) 1,217,269
RIS SR R E R Capital injection by non-controlling
interest - - - 11,358 11,358
R B & AR A B ER Transfer of 50% of net risk
MBS ER 2R /32T H) 50% premium earned from retained
EX B EE profits to contingency reserve 31 - (76,313) 76,313 - -
& EIX R IE B2 RB =T Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 = 10,025 (10,025) = =
ENZEENFRE Dividend paid related to 2008 - (250,000) - - (250,000)
F-EZTAE+-A=+—H Balance as at 31 December 2009
U 2,000,000 4,425,694 304,477 10920 6,741,091
NE K Profit for the year - 1233532 = 330 1,233,862
A SRS A E RS Net fair value gains of available-
BN - EHIBREIIN for-sale securities, net of tax 31 - = 87,742 = 87,742
&R RIS RN - Net change in cash flow hedges,
EBRFEIN net of tax 31 = = 21,928 = 21,928
HEGIML S FFERLE Exchange differences on
Z80 translation of foreign operations
- BERHA — subsidiary 31 - - 33878 431 4,309
— HEHE SRR — jointly controlled entity 31 - - 13,108 - 13,108
AEELERE B Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,233,532 126,656 761 1,360,949
BRRB &R AR B Transfer of 50% of net risk
M BEARZR /S A) 50% premium earned from retained
EXRIER profits to contingency reserve 31 - (260,282) 260,282 - -
& [B] JXUB& i 28 22 (R B Vi A Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 31 - 12,680 (12,680) - -
BEN=FEFNERE Dividend paid related to 2009 - (500,000) = = (500,000)
=F_§—’§$+_F] =+—H Balance as at 31 December 2010
&R 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040

" FoE-TEL-A=+-B EMR
1% 350,000,000 7T (= &

TEERBURKREBIRE. -

58 & 137 METEMTE R

AWM SIRKA

BRS
8 /fm

tl\

Gilliskd
= 1% : 500,000,000 %

o

* As at 31 December 2010, HK$350 million (2009: HK$500 million) was earmarked as
proposed final dividend from retained profits.

The notes on pages 58 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

Statements.
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Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T-FTFT_A=1+—HIEFE
for the year ended 31 December 2010

2010 2009
5pz2 FET FHTT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEVZFRBEALRE cash flows from operating activities
ZE Operating profit 1,403,618 1,148,296
MATZTEL A A% Adjustment for:
FLEMA Interest income (1,151,373)  (1,334,981)
REZH Interest expense 116,949 254,642
R BUA Dividend income (43,595) (42,224)
Eil= Depreciation 12,928 10,890
B AT AT LE R Amortisation of discount on debt securities issued 53,853 45,952
TIRORER K Write-back of loan impairment allowances (16,663) (36,837)
HORR UK B DY F MRS Y BT SRR Loan portfolio written off net of recoveries 4,760 634
BEFTIL Bk Unwind of discount on impairment (79) (322
At B SRR A 2 5 H Amortisation of unrealised loss on available-for-
UESAT AR AR I S 45000 sale securities transferred to held-to-maturity
securities 1,809 2,381
IERIZEN/ (FTik) HE4H Amortisation of premium/(discount) on investment
securities 8,181 (5,701)
&R E I AW 250 Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities (64,752) (5,277)
EHITAEATEED Change in fair value of financial instruments 4,832 35,534
BEINS R P IRE /R = Change in translation of financial assets under cash
Az flow hedge 26,340 25,126
BU\LISZ e iy acle) Fair value changes of cash flow hedge transferred
NEEE) to income statement (79) -
=& Interest received 1,123,624 1,361,663
BERFE Interest paid (69,183) (278,820)
ﬂifr/l 2R KA Cash flows from operating activities before changes
ZEWHSHEINERE in operating assets and liabilities 1,411,170 1,180,956
F= A28 E BiTF R (Increase)/decrease in time deposits with more than
(#&)/ mb three months’ maturity (1,117,896) 88,971
RIBCCFOR > Decrease in remittance receivables 81,129 597,273
TSI - e REME =R Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other assets 3,438 630
PIFAE R Decrease in loan portfolio 8,541,761 7,007,921
RISTIKIR » Rz FF S R Eth Increase in accounts payable, accrued expenses and
RGN other liabilities 16,960 90,484
{RES S (528 Z3E N Increase in insurance liabilities, net 372,557 635,919
HNTULHZEE Exchange differences (6,535) (2,848)
ZEMEIE Cash generated from operation 9,302,584 9,599,306
B BEFIEH Hong Kong profits tax paid (176,466) (51,066)
ZELSMEINE 2T Net cash generated from operating activities 9,126,118 9,548,240

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



2010 2009

BE FET FHET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BRATHAFALTE Cash flows from investing activities
N SR [&] 78 2% 7= Purchase of fixed assets 24 (8,866) (17,845)
T 3E A i B 1E 5 Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (4,263,000) (3,134,672)
ML 58 2 B HiiE 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (4,341,842)  (2,923,038)
tH 65 sk e el AT 4 Y S Proceeds from sale or redemption of
FS 5 available-for-sale securities 4,644,210 1,813,456
T [El45 8 2= B BRiE 5 P13 5101 Proceeds from redemption of held-to-maturity
securities 21(b) 2,130,621 2,731,226
Rz R i SE AR SR IR > Decrease in amount due from a jointly controlled
entity - 1,543
BRI AR B Dividend received from available-for-sale securities 45,093 39,554
TR ENETRAIE Net cash used in investing activities (1,793,784)  (1,489,776)
FIBRIASANFE Net cash inflows before financing 7,332,334 8,058,464
A ESFRI SR E Cash flows from financing activities
SNCE S BFRFTFHIN Proceeds from advance from Exchange Fund - 57,000,000
BIRINCES IR Repayment of advance from Exchange Fund - (65,000,000)
RITHR S U5 5 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 28 8,193,535 22,060,740
6 B A1THSS IS Redemption of debt securities issued 28 (13,838,443)  (19,645,595)
B AITIRIBIE AR Repayment of mortgage-backed securities issued 29 (470,471)  (1,171,456)
BRI AR RIER Capital injection by non-controlling interest - 11,358
EFRE A Dividend paid 16 (500,000) (250,000)
BEE TR & A A0 Net cash used in financing activities (6,615,379)  (6,994,953)
NE&RERI LI E EISET Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 716,955 1,063,511
FMRERERILINE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 3,828,119 2,764,608
FRYSRERNLINE Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 4,545,074 3,828,119
FE 58 E 137 MFTHMNENRE W SIREA—IH © The notes on pages 58 to 137 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. mlEA

ERRIBIESER AR ([AAF]]) REMEAR
(R [REH ) HEREVMSIRETNIZBHREES
HIIRAS ([FELIHNAS ) MANEEMSIR
LEN ([BEBEMSIREEN | (BIEREERMN
RIBEBMSIREEN ([HBVSREEN]) ~ F
BIHEN (BB 1HEN]D Riek) - 84
INSITRN - AREB R R ZBIHHELRS o

RRAM SRR LRAMPIURS - FHERT
BB HIRA - UATESIKSSBAT B
B (BIEFTE ST A) MBS B -

B RITFRRESN - Rl R A WS IRR AT AL
NEZ2UBRRITEIDESAEZ2IRNME F
EFrR R B — 2R -

U IR BT 25 1R 5 R IO 5 3R e LR
ETFEARIMS  MEREAAAEDL UK
IR AT N - BERS MM RRE %
PSS - ABRREIIGANS REBEEN
SEHEAENDE 4B -

2. ERSITHER
21 RABFEMSREEN
(@ F=2—BF—A— BRUEEMM
B - BT RS
() FHLEN - BITREBF =224
3K - FHSARREIRR

s BESIENFE 275 (R17) £7
& RIRIM SRR - ERANIEHIR
- MEERSEIE~ERE
e - MR SRR
[B) ) PTG 32 5 B0 B2 WA 2 AE AR s R
251 o 1% AN TR S R 5K 54 A

ATREFR - HAZARZR
TIREBEAFEENITE - Mins
THREIKPHIA o MAZEITH
SUEN - XK R 55 R R 5+
RAFN

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs" is a collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale investment
securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistently applied
to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Adoption of HKFRSs

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective on or after
1 January 2010

(i) The following standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2010, which are relevant to the Group:

e HKAS 27 (revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements requires the effects of all transactions with non-
controlling interests to be recorded in equity if there is no
change in control and these transactions will no longer result
in goodwill or gains and losses. The standard also specifies
the accounting when control is lost. Any remaining interest
in the entity is re-measured to fair value, and a gain or 10ss
is recognised in profit or loss. The adoption of the revised
standard has no effect on the financial statements of the
Group.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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e HKAS 39 (amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting clarifies

that gains or losses should be reclassified from equity to profit
or loss in the period in which the hedged forecast cash flow
affects profit or l0ss. There is no material impact to the financial
statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HKAS 39 (@amendment) Treating Loan Prepayment Penalties
as closely related derivatives clarifies that loan prepayment
penalties are only treated as closely related embedded
derivatives, if the penalties are payments that compensate
the lender for loss of interest by reducing the economic 10sS
from reinvestment risk. A specific formula is given to calculate
the lost interest. There is no material impact to the financial
statements of the Group as a result of this amendment.

HK(FRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives and
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
requires an entity to assess whether an embedded derivative
should be separated from a host contract when the entity
reclassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the ‘fair value through
profit or loss’ category. This assessment is to be made based
on circumstances that existed on the later of the date the
entity first became a party to the contract and the date of any
contract amendments that significantly change the cash flows
of the contract. If the entity is unable to make this assessment,
the hybrid instrument must remain classified as at fair value
through profit or loss in its entirety. There is no material impact
to the financial statements of the Group as a result of this
amendment.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations
effective in 2010, are not currently relevant to the Group (although
they may affect the accounting for future transactions):

e HKFRS 2 (amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based

Payment Transactions.

e HKFRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations, and consequential

amendments to HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 28 Investments in Associates, and HKAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures.

e HKFRS 5 (amendment) Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations.

—Z—-ZFFR ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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60 SEMEMKRMIE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e HKAS 1 (@amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements.

e HKAS 17 (amendment) Leases.

o HKAS 38 (amendment) Intangible Assets.

e HKAS 39 (amendment) Eligible Hedged Items.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operations.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 17 Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Oowners.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers.

e HK-Int5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause.

e Improvements to HKFRS containing numerous amendments
to HKFRS which the HKICPA consider non-urgent but
necessary.

L)EMAEERERWEN > BT R (b) Standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet
%R effective
() ATEMREE—E—SF—A—HiE2 (i) The following new standard and amendments relevant to the
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EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

Group have been issued but not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2010 and have not been early adopted:

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments was issued in November
2009 and replaces those parts of HKAS 39 relating to the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Key
features are as follows:

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those to be measured subsequently
at fair value, and those to be measured subsequently at
amortised cost. The decision is to be made at initial recognition.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument.

An instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
only if it is a debt instrument and both the objective of the
entity's business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset's contractual cash flows
represent only payments of principal and interest (that is, it
has only ‘basic loan features’). All other debt instruments are
to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at
fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will
be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity instruments, an irrevocable election can be made at
initial recognition, to recognise unrealised and realised fair
value gains and losses through other comprehensive income
rather than profit or loss. There is no recycling of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss. This election may be made
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends are to be
presented in profit or loss, as long as they represent return
on investment.

In November 2010, the requirements related to the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and derecognition
of financial instruments were added to HKFRS 9. All the
requirements in HKAS 39 for the accounting and presentation
for financial liabilities and for derecognition of financial
instruments were carried forward unchanged to HKFRS 9,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss using the fair value option.

For the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss using the fair value option, the amount of change in the
fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented separately in other comprehensive income,
unless presentation of the fair value change attributable
to the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss where an entity shall recognise all fair value movements
in the profit or loss. There is no subsequent recycling of the
amounts in the other comprehensive income to profit or loss,
but accumulated gains or losses may be transferred within
equity.

Financial liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss, including financial guarantees and loan
commitments measured at fair value through profit or loss,
will continue to have all fair value movement recognised in
the profit or loss.

While adoption of HKFRS 9 is mandatory from 1 January 2013,
earlier adoption is permitted.

The Group is considering the implications of the whole standard
including other phases of HKFRS 9 on the Group and the timing
of its adoption by the Group.
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e Third improvements to Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (2010) were issued in May 2010 by HKICPA. All
improvements are effective in the financial year of 2011. No
material changes to accounting policies are expected as a
result of these amendments.

(i) The following amendments and interpretations, which are not
effective in 2010 are not expected to be relevant to the Group:

e HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters.

e HKAS 12 (amendment) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets.

e HKAS 32 (amendment) Classification of Rights Issues.

e HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments.

e HK (IFRIC) — Int 14 (amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement.

(c) Early adoption of standard

The Group has early-adopted HKAS 24 (revised) Related Party
Disclosures in 2010, which was issued in November 2009. It
supersedes HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures issued in 2003. The
revised standard clarifies and simplifies the definition of a related
party. It also provides a partial exemption from the disclosure
requirements for government-related entities to disclose details of
all transactions with the government and other government-related
entities. The Group has not applied the exemption from the disclosure
requirements for the government-related entities.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half
of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that control
ceases.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by the
Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of these interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meet the definition of a financial liabilities. They are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, separately from
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the net profit
for the year between non-controlling interest and equity holders of
the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investment
in the subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group. Disposals
to non-controlling interest result in gains and losses to the Group
that are recorded in the income statement. Purchases from the non-
controlling interests result in goodwill, being the difference between
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the economic
activity are referred as jointly controlled entities. Investments in jointly
controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or losses is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of movements in
reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the entity.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inthe Company’s statement of financial position, the investment in the
jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less provision for impairment
allowances. The results of the jointly controlled entity are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all interest bearing financial instruments using the effective interest
method except for those designated at fair value through profit or 0ss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Non interest income
(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront arrangement fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate are recognised as
an adjustment to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.

(b) Dividend Income

=

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment
is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables;
held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments
at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated as at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
Afinancial asset is classified as held for trading if acquired principally

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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for the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
making. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through profit or
loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or financial liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and this is the basis on which information about the
financial assets and/or financial liabilities is provided internally
to the key management personnel.

(iii

Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing one or
more embedded derivatives significantly modify the cash flows,
are designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
and for which the Group has no intention of trading immediately or
in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the
Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. If the Group was to sell other than an insignificant amount
of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be tainted and
reclassified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial investments
that are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rate,
exchange rate or market prices. They are initially recognised at fair
value including direct and incremental transaction costs. They are
subsequently held at fair value.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on settlement
date. Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or where the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss” category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised directly in equity, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be recognised in income statement.
However, interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in the income statement when
the entity’s right to receive payment is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in income statement; translation differences on
non-monetary securities are recognised in equity. Changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are based on
current bid prices. If there is no active market for a financial asset,
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of assets is impaired includes observable data that comes to
the attention of the Group about the following loss events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

e the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
Group would not otherwise consider;

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

¢ the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

e observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant.
For exposures which are not individually significant, the Group will
assess impairment either individually or collectively. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit
risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment oss is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
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use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
inthe income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment
loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract.
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument'’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash flows of
a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics
which are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being
evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical l0ss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the
group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did
not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based
and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related
observable data from period to period which are indicative of changes
in the probability of losses in the group and their magnitude. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows
are reviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences between
loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the l0ss has been
determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off decrease the amount of the allowance for loan impairment in the
income statement.

If, ina subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in the income statement.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.7

(b) Assets carried at fair value

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in income statement, the impairment 10ss is
reversed through the income statement.

(c) Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment assessment or
individually significant and whose terms have been renegotiated are
no longer considered to be past due but are treated as renegotiated
loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities. All the
financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised initially at
fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include (i)
notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt Issuance
Programme (“DIP"), (i) notes offered to retail investors through the placing
banks in standalone retail bond issues and under the Retail Bond Issuance
Programme (“RBIP") and (iii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
Programme (“MTN"). The Mortgage-Backed Securities (“MBS”) issued by
the SPEs through the MBS Programme and Bauhinia MBS Programme
are recorded as mortgage-backed securities issued in the statement of
financial position on consolidation of the SPES. These notes (including
MBS) are initially designated as either (i) financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss or (i) other financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative instruments)
designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge and at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with
changes in fair value being recorded in the income statement.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially recognised
at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration received, net of
transaction costs incurred. The notes are subsequently stated at
amortised costs; any difference between proceeds net of transaction
costs and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective interest
method.
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2.8

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or losses,
being the difference between the redemption/repurchase amount and
the carrying amount, are recognised in the income statement in the
period in which the redemption/repurchase takes place.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices
in active markets, including recent market transactions, and valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition
is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given
or received) unless the fair value of that instrument is evidenced by
comparison with other observable current market transactions in the
same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on
a valuation technigue whose variables include only data from observable
markets. When such evidence exists, the Group recognises profits on
day 1.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
S0, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedge); or, (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset or liability,
or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the relationship
between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.9

2.10

2.11

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for which the
effective interest method is used, is amortised to income statement
over the period to maturity.

S
=

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect income
statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction is no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported in
equity is immediately transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives at fair value through profit or loss

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that do
not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value through profit
or loss. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument are
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for sale and
reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are derecognised. The
repossessed collateral assets are measured at lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates
resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments
of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its
chief operating decision maker.
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Income directly associated with each segment is included in determining

segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to each segment

by way of internal fund transfer pricing mechanisms. Cost allocation
is based on the direct costs incurred by the respective segment and

apportionment of management overheads.

2.12 Foreign currency translation

@)

b

=

(©

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
inwhich the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value
reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

e Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

e Income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

o All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

¢ Exchange differences arising from the above process are reported
in shareholders” equity as translation reserve.

¢ On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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2.13

2.14

2.15

investments, are taken to other comprehensive income. When
a foreign operation is disposed of, or partially disposed of, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

Computer 3 years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entity, and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
from investment in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income tax payable on profits is recognised as an expense in the period
in which profits arise. The tax effects of income tax losses available
for carry-forward are recognised as an asset when it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which these losses can
be utilised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale
investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or credited
directly to equity, is also credited or charged directly to equity and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the
deferred gain or loss.

2.16 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long-service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity leave are
recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit after
certain adjustments. The Company recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.

(c) Pension obligations

The Company offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension plans
are generally funded by payments from employees and by the
Company.

The Company’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as incurred
and are reduced by the portion of employer contributions being
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to full
vesting of the employer contributions.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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(b)

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company
recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal;
or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of each reporting period date are discounted
to present value.

2.17 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more likely

than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the

obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.18 Leases

(@) Operating leases

=

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The Group entered into operating leases primarily as lessee.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The Group
entered into finance leases primarily as lessor. Finance leases are
capitalised as receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The difference between the gross receivable
and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the net investment method, which reflects a constant periodic
rate of return. Hire purchase contracts having the characteristics of
a finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as finance
leases. Impairment allowances are accounted for in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2.6.

—Z—-ZFFR ANNUAL REPORT 2010

75



76 SEMEMKRMIE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.19
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2.19

2.20

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months' maturity
from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks and
other financial institutions.

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business of the Group is accounted for on the
annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting approach, the
Group makes provisions based on credible estimates of future income
and outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the current
accounting period. The underwriting result includes any adjustments
arising from the correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through the Authorized
Institutions as defined in accordance with Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction of discounts,
include the reinsurance premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers,
the risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net
premiums are recognised as income on a time-apportioned basis during
the time the insurance coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums written
which are estimated to relate to risks and services subsequent to the
end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred but not
reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting period. For risk-
sharing business, 50% of the net risk premiums earned in a year is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a reasonable period of time and maintained
in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as considered by
directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve
can be made to meet excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the Contingency
Reserve can be released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the Group with
reinsurers under which the Group is compensated for losses on one or
more insurance contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which the
Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are recognised
as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable
from reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured insurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance assets are primarily premiums for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense.
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2.21

2.22

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued. These are non-insurance contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements
at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group's liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised.
Any changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to
the income statement.

Dividend

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting period is
disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’ equity.

Financial risk management
Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group during the year are (i) to purchase
portfolios of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of
assets through issuance of debt securities; and (jii) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Authorized Institutions in respect of mortgage loans
originated by such Authorized Institutions and secured by residential
properties in Hong Kong. By their nature, the Group's activities are
principally related to the use of financial instruments including cash,
loans, debts and derivatives.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group's financial performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters including
financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees, including the
Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee, Transaction Approval
Committee and Operational Risk Committee which report to Corporate
Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards for asset
acquisition and mortgage insurance. The Asset and Liability Committee
("ALCO") oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. In
addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment. The most important types of
risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency
risk and interest rate risk.
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3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio, investment
securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk on liquid funds and
investment securities is limited because the counterparties are mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies with very
high credit ratings.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio, which
is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Allowance for impairment is provided for losses that have been
incurred at the end of the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market could
result in losses that are different from those provided for at the end of the
reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent policy for managing
its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance portfolios,
the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers carefully, (i) adopt prudent asset purchasing criteria and insurance
eligibility criteria, (iii) conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv)
ensure adequate protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on mortgage
loans. Risk exposure is spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s mortgage
exposures are located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention paid
to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans and take
recovery action such as establishing relief plan with borrowers in order to
maximise recoveries. Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly
and impairment allowance is charged to income statement in accordance
with the guidelines approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are subject to regular
review. The principal collateral types for loan portfolio are mortgages
over properties, reserve funds and deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement.

Collateral held as security for financial assets other than loan portfolio is
determined by the nature of the instrument. Debt securities are generally
unsecured, with the exception of asset-backed securities and similar
instruments, which are secured by portfolios of financial assets.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are monitored
against counterparty risk limits established in accordance with the
investment guidelines and credit risk policy of the Group. These

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



FHERNKZASEBFFELHRIT - X
et - FEREXRE LRI AERS
FI TR (BIAFERNEHNES) HIH
NFE - SATETAMS - AFAENRS
BANERATRBAFECTARENRE
BEMENNIES - ERNEIEARSDTF
BEUMSHRAN — 5 - SminRHEE
FEXE—FHER o

SENBIFE T EMADNE - IEHKABRA
S FFHEWRELAE  IEHHA
B WREAEE T EFE—RBHEAT
BREFENMEEENRN L - WE
ERGNFHRAEHEERA -

@ RTFFARARIEMEIRHE
RERNRSEIRRINAT

counterparty risk limits are subject to regular review by the Credit
Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to credit risk is limited to the current fair value of instruments that are
favourable to the Group (i.e. assets where their fair value is positive),
which in relation to derivatives is only a small fraction of the contract, or
notional values used to express the volume of instruments outstanding.
This credit risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash, securities
or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt in cash,
securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are established for each
counterparty to cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from
the Group’s market transactions on any single day.

(@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking account of
collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

AEH AAT]
The Group The Company
F-F—FF F==FThF F-E—FF F==EThF
+=A=+—H +=—A=+—H +=A=+—H +=—A=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FHT F#ET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BrE AsSsets:
N&REHRE Cash and short-term funds 5,902,649 4,067,798 5,769,509 3,924,752
IV SN Interest and remittance
SLEK receivables 657,150 710,530 645,232 698,809
MESMIA Derivative financial instruments 1,396,621 1,317,375 1,372,522 1,273,102
TIRBE B En Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 | 43,788,716 31,392,398 | 40,817,163
IEARIER - Investment securities:
- AIEHERS — available-for-sale debt
securities 1,934,627 2,587,344 1,934,627 2,587,344
- HEZIEFESEF - held-to-maturity debt
securities 8,033,133 5,817,998 8,033,133 5,817,998
T ERIN - #2& K Prepayments, deposits and
E 5= other assets 27,659 32,595 29,220 36,681
BIRE R = Reinsurance assets 204,891 266,101 204,891 266,101
RremmRINABE © Off-balance sheet exposures:
W SR Financial guarantees
(IR AL i R (contractual amount under
BIE LR E) the MBS programmes) - - 805,868 1,277,647
BX R Total risk-in-force 17,629,290 14,920,287 18,170,896 14,919,441
71,044,957 73,508,744 68,358,296 71,619,038
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(b)

HAEHWERRESFAOT : (b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:
NEHA ZN/NG|
The Group The Company

F=B-¥F TF-TTNF  FoB-BE TFoTThF

+=—A=+—-H +=—A=+—H +=A=+—-HB +=-A=+—H

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2010 2009 2010 2009

FHET FHAT FHET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R EAIA AR R E Neither past due nor impaired 34,647,589 42,854,818 30,842,770 39,972,073
JEER{B KR (E Past due but not impaired 613,099 942,532 551,377 853,688
ERE Impaired 278 5,377 278 5,377
WRAE B Gross loan portfolio 35,260,966 43,802,727 31,394,425 40,831,138
BRRORER % Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011) (2,027) (13,975)
35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163

T 2 1R AR OR 8 B IR R Rl (B #9 BT 3R
ENERRZASEAEARNNA
BRI R Geat T -

The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor impaired
as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed by reference
to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

REH Pi/NC]
The Group The Company
FT-EF-FTH FTZEZNF F-E-FTH& F==ThF
+=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H +=A=+—-H +=-A=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KAl Grades:
18234 1t03 34,621,215 42,794,073 30,819,076 39,916,630
44 4 29 = 29 =
54 5 26,345 60,745 23,665 55,443
34,647,589 42,854,818 30,842,770 39,972,073

1E3R BTN KT S Al E
BFE TR - A ARKFRE 5T
L HEINSRE e MR ER RO H M

AFBRAEBHPILFE - HARHETE
KB 1E T2 %2 HE DN5E 48 B S 4 1 am e

pasiod
DImA

S5RBIEREIQHILT RFARTR
TERELRABI ©

Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no previous
past due history; and with different levels of credit enhancements
in addition to the collateral held as security.

Grade 4 includes loans with previous past due history and with
different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the collateral

held as security.

Grade 5 includes loans with previous past due history and with
collateral held as security.
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Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

NEH ARAT]
The Group The Company
F-E-BE T-2INF  FoE-BE  ToIEAF
+=A=+—-H +=A=+—H +=A=+—H +=A=+—H
As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET AT FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e ERET () Past due:
=MNAAT Three months or less 609,632 933,096 547,910 844,512
INNASATE ¢ Six months or less but over
BENS="H three months 1,931 4,316 1,931 4,056
BN A Over six months 1,536 5,120 1,536 5,120
BER Total 613,099 942,532 551,377 853,688
ML EAETT  Fair value of collateral and other
ZHE ISR HER credit enhancement
NEE 2,528,733 2,753,090 2,373,963 2,515,417
ENBR B 5T (d) Individually impaired loans

ARNE R RAN BARIATHE B K0 R &
SR LHINRIE T AERNI S REN
MBI BT F N 278,000 T (ZFF
JLE : 5,377,00087T) °

REH R AN R IE R R E
B2 HEANsR 8 ME A 2 1B 9 388,000 75

TT (ZZET N4 : 9,177,000/87T) °
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The individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company before
taking into account the cash flows from collateral held and credit
enhancement amounted to HK$278,000 (2009: HK$5,377,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company amounted to HK$388,000 (2009:
HK$9,177,000).

Renegotiated loans

Renegotiated loans are those that have been restructured due to
deterioration in the borrower’s financial position and where the
Group has made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Following restructuring, a previously overdue customer account is
restored to a normal status and managed together with other similar
accounts. Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators
or criteria which indicate that payment will most likely continue. These
policies are kept under continuous review. Renegotiated loans that
would otherwise be past due or impaired totalled HK$10,122,000
as at 31 December 2010 (2009: HK$3,304,000). A renegotiated loan
will continue to be disclosed as such unless the loan has been
performing in accordance with the rescheduled terms for a period
of six months.
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(f) Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security, as follows:

TKEE
Carrying Amount
2010 2009
FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
e/l Residential property 3,861 3,317
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Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness. Repossessed
property is classified in the statement of financial position within
other assets.

Investment securities

According to the Investment Guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with a certain
minimum credit rating. The proportion of investment according to
rating categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating
designation as at the end of the reporting period, based on external
credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s, Moody's and Fitch). In
the absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the issuers are
reported.

BEE

FIEAIES

oI H &S Held-to-
AEFARANT Available-for- maturity B8
F-B—BE+—A=+—H sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHERT FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2010 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 795,142 2,367,263 3,162,405
AA- £ AA+/Aa3 E Aa1l AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 1,139,485 5,293,172 6,432,657
A- E A+/A3 E A1 A- to A+/A3 to A1 - 372,698 372,698
EER Total 1,934,627 8,033,133 9,967,760

BHEZE

BRGNS

ATt &R Held-to-
REF B AT Avalilable-for- maturity SEAN
F-EEh&+—A=+—FH sale securities securities Total
The Group and the Company FHT FHT FAT
As at 31 December 2009 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Aaa AAA/Aaa 581,306 642,867 1,224,173
AA- & AA+/Aa3 & Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 to Aa1 2,006,038 4,330,310 6,336,348
A- & A+/A3E A1 A-t0 A+/A3 10 A1 = 844,821 844,821
il Total 2,587,344 5,817,998 8,405,342
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3.3 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s exposures
to market risk primarily arise from the interest rate management of the
entity’s financial instruments of different repricing characteristics. The
Group hedges a major proportion of its existing interest rate risk of the
fixed-rate bond issuance using fair value hedges in the form of interest
rate swaps by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the Treasury
Department using risk limits approved by the Board of Directors. Strategies
on interest rate risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review the latest
conditions in the financial markets and the asset-liability portfolio mix.
The Treasury Department is responsible for monitoring financial market
movements and executing transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle
office monitors the compliance of risk limits and performs stress tests to
assess the potential size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions.
The results of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.

A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor the
sensitivity of projected net interest income under different interest
rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through hedging
operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of the interest rate
curve as at 31 December 2010 would decrease the future net interest
income for the next 12 months by around HK$3 million (2009: HK$18.7
million) and increase by around HK$3 million (2009: HK$13 million) for a
similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2010, if interest rates at that date had experienced
a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$1 million lower (2009: HK$5.4 million) and
the reserve would have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2009:
HK$2.9 million lower) as at 31 December 2010. If interest rates had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift upwards, profit before tax
for the year would have been higher by around HK$1 million (2009: HK$5
million) and the reserve would have been lower by less than HK$1 million
(2009: HK$2 million higher).
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As at 31 December 2010, with all other variables held constant, if the HK
dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit before tax for the year would have been around HK$8 million higher
(2009: HK$9.3 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by
100 price interest points against the US dollar, profit before tax for the year
would have been around HK$8 million lower (2009: HK$9.3 million).

As at 31 December 2010, with all other variables held constant, if the
HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against foreign
currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax for the year would
have been around HK$12 million higher (2009: HK$2.2 million lower).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit before tax
for the year would have been around HK$12 million lower (2009: HK$2.2
million higher).

The 20 basis points and 100 price interest points increase or decrease
represent management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rate and exchange rates over the period until the next reporting
period end.

(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial position
and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies for investment
purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may
be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the Group’s
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.
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Hithshth
BT %t Other foreign 2E
HKD usb currencies Total
AEH FHET FHET FHERT FHET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoB—FF As at 31 December 2010
+=HA=+—H
#re Assets
N& KBRS Cash and short-term funds 4,297,927 689,202 915,520 5,902,649
LR B K SC R Interest and remittance
receivables 480,028 169,959 7,163 657,150
PTESMITE Derivative financial instruments 1,202,260 194,361 - 1,396,621
TRAB BN Loan portfolio, net 24,015,262 11,243,675 - 35,258,937
IEAIER - Investment securities:
- AEHE - available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
- HEEEH — held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
H RIS SEARE R Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,720 130,720
B xR = Fixed assets 15,980 - 1,272 17,252
TR - e K Prepayments, deposits and
HA R~ other assets 27,504 - 155 27,659
BRE R = Reinsurance assets 204,891 - - 204,891
T RE Total assets 35,798,042 17,795,565 1,439,371 55,032,978
s Liabilities
RASFI & Interest payable 382,750 104,310 6,493 493,553
MATIRER « A FFSZ Accounts payable, accrued
R E A R expenses and other liabilities 4,288,556 664 1,917 4,291,137
PTESMTE Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
MASFRIN Tax payable 133,560 - - 133,560
B IEFH A (52 Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
IRE& T 5 Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
B EITHRSIE S Debt securities issued 29,630,968 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,127,735
B RITIRIBIE S Mortgage-backed securities
issued 1,529,749 - - 1,529,749
Ul ekl Total liabilities 37,797,234 8,145,881 1,487,823 47,430,938
/2 Net position (1,999,192) 9,649,684 (48,452) 7,602,040
BERABERIN Off-balance sheet net notional
BENEST position* 2,167,017 (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008

*

85

# Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.

RERBERING R LM ITES
BT A (EERNRRASEFHMKRD
BIRE) H9E LTS E A TENZER
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Hithsh
BT %L Other foreign BE
HKD usb currencies Total
AATF FHET FHET FHET FHET
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=2—-FF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
#"re Assets
N&REHEE Cash and short-term funds 4,281,306 689,202 799,001 5,769,509
R B RS Interest and remittance
receivables 468,279 169,959 6,994 645,232
PTEEmITE Derivative financial instruments 1,178,161 194,361 - 1,372,522
TRRES S Loan portfolio, net 20,148,723 11,243,675 - 31,392,398
UEAIR Investment securities:
- AEEE — available-for-sale 1,698,952 1,705,014 - 3,403,966
- BEEDH - held-to-maturity 3,855,238 3,793,354 384,541 8,033,133
LR E=WNGIE o Investment in subsidiaries 3,103,572 - 102,060 3,205,632
HEIRHISE IR Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 120,554 120,554
B R~ Fixed assets 15,980 - - 15,980
USRI ~ 1= & Prepayments, deposits and
HAh R = other assets 29,220 - - 29,220
R R Reinsurance assets 204,891 - - 204,891
R RE Total assets 34,984,322 17,795,565 1,413,150 54,193,037
iR Liabilities
AR B Interest payable 380,428 104,310 6,493 491,231
MK« R FF 2 Accounts payable, accrued
R E A 7 {57 expenses and other liabilities 4,791,012 641 613 4,792,266
PTEEmITE Derivative financial instruments 20,819 23,553 - 44,372
RAFFLIN Tax payable 134,532 - - 134,532
12 RERA IR 5 Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 - - 37,167
RS Insurance liabilities 1,773,665 - - 1,773,665
B AITRSIU S Debt securities issued 29,909,119 8,017,354 1,479,413 39,405,886
ATEER Total liabilities 37,046,742 8,145,858 1,486,519 46,679,119
SR X I Net position (2,062,420) 9,649,707 (73,369) 7,513,918
BEABERIN Off-balance sheet net notional
BRNFEC! position # 2,167,017 (3,352,018) 1,438,009 253,008
FRERRERINEE X FCEITITES # Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
BTE (EZANAKALNR T HTIESN the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
KX ) B X EMSHAFENZEN - which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency

movements and their fair values.
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H Ao
BIT EViv Other foreign B
HKD usD currencies Total
RER FHIT FAT FAT FHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FZEFNF As at 31 December 2009
+=—A=+—8
"= Assets
N& KBRS Cash and short-term funds 3,065,437 895,247 107,114 4,067,798
RLUCR B K SC R Interest and remittance
receivables 495,299 207,063 8,168 710,530
PTESmITE Derivative financial instruments 1,249,113 68,262 - 1,317,375
TRAE B Loan portfolio, net 29,289,381 14,499,335 - 43,788,716
IEARIER - Investment securities:
- AEEE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
- FEZREH — held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
HEIE S SEARIE R Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 115,190 115,190
EE R’ Fixed assets 19,000 - 2,257 21,257
TARTFRIL ~ 2E K Prepayments, deposits and
HA R~ other assets 32,375 - 220 32,595
R R = Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
R RE Total assets 37,556,517 21,961,158 232,949 59,750,624
R Liabilities
RIRTAILE Interest payable 307,265 130,390 8,132 445,787
MR« RAFFFSZ Accounts payable, accrued
R E A R expenses and other liabilities 4,272,541 598 1,038 4,274,177
PTEEMITE Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
IDENEZAN Tax payable 138,329 - - 138,329
12 FEFL A 52 Deferred tax liabilities 15,209 - - 15,209
IREE B 57 Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BATHRSIES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
B RITIRIBIE S Mortgage-backed securities
issued 2,020,394 - - 2,020,394
A EER Total liabilities 42,538,428 8,564,611 1,906,494 53,009,533
BHOEE Net position (4,981,911) 13,396,547 (1,673,545) 6,741,091
BEABERIN Off-balance sheet net notional
BENER position* 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301
FREARERINEG LFOEINTITES # Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
BTA (E2RARRANEETHRMIKZ) the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
RN BB LS TSENFEHZEDR - which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency

movements and their fair values.
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HAbohm
7SI £ Other foreign B
HKD usb currencies Total
Vi N/NE FAT AT FHT FABT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETNF As at 31 December 2009
+ A=+—H
iy Assets
N&REHEE Cash and short-term funds 3,029,501 895,248 3 3,924,752
R B R Interest and remittance
receivables 483,614 207,063 8,132 698,809
?ﬁi@%ﬁlﬂ Derivative financial instruments 1,204,840 68,262 - 1,273,102
RS B Loan portfolio, net 26,317,828 14,499,335 - 40,817,163
ﬁ%&’ﬁ : Investment securities:
- AEEE — available-for-sale 759,851 2,853,213 - 3,613,064
i - held-to-maturity 2,379,960 3,438,038 - 5,817,998
LR E=WNGIE 3o Investment in subsidiaries 1,631,520 - 102,060 1,733,580
H R ISR R 5 Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - 120,554 120,554
[&]E 7 7= Fixed assets 19,000 - - 19,000
ST I )4 Prepayments, deposits and
EAh R = other assets 36,681 - - 36,681
R R Reinsurance assets 266,101 - - 266,101
RrERE Total assets 36,128,896 21,961,159 230,749 58,320,804
i Liabilities
IDEREES) Interest payable 303,695 130,390 8,132 442,217
MK « R FFsZ  Accounts payable, accrued
R E A {57 expenses and other liabilities 4,909,762 574 613 4,910,949
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 107,872 50,374 - 158,246
NS Tax payable 131,850 - - 131,850
126 JEFH T A T Deferred tax liabilities 15,213 - - 15,213
{RE& A 3R Insurance liabilities 1,462,318 - - 1,462,318
BATHRSIES Debt securities issued 34,214,500 8,383,249 1,897,324 44,495,073
AR EN Total liabilities 41,145,210 8,564,587 1,906,069 51,615,866
BO5E Net position (5,016,314) 13,396,572 (1,675,320) 6,704,938
BRI Off-balance sheet net notional
BB position* 4,388,318 (6,164,030) 1,869,013 93,301
FREAREKRINGE R LFCEINTITES # Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
BT E (EZRLURKAR R FEMKED the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
RIXBS) BB NS SH N TFENER which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency

NERER D FERZRREL
NenBNERRTDESHEIAMNR
RIS 7 2 K biE & T 177 M) 5 B i O
NG o A FER KX L To 52 R
T AN B R b 2 T 377 M) 3 B i O
ﬁ%ﬂ@°ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁmimﬁﬁ
1R AN S ] B 28 FAE A R XUBS R
@m RN o B FF X S
ZARE Y 1A - B R ERRETITEY

(b)

movements and their fair values.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both
its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as
a result of such changes but may reduce or create l0sses in the

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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event that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on
the level of interest rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which
is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest rate
risks. Included in the tables are the Group's assets and liabilities at
carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing
or maturity dates. The carrying amounts of derivative financial
instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group'’s
exposure to interest rate movements, are included under the heading

BA e

“Non-interest bearing”.

=MABE
—MABE % —ELE
—"ARn =1 Over EhE Fitd
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year AFLE  Non-interest 5t
1month  to 3 months to1year  to5years Over5years bearing Total
KR FET FiHT FET Fix FHET FHT FHET
The Group HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F-FF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
A= Assets
e REEHRE Cash and short-term funds 5,205,425 413,890 238,879 - - 44,455 5,902,649
R B R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 657,150 657,150
TESBTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,396,621 1,396,621
BIAR 25 Loan portfolio, net 25,697,371 9,346,147 140,921 53,832 20,666 - 35,258,937
IEHFRR Investment securities:
- AHEE - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- BEEIH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
HEFR B SERE R Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 130,720 130,720
BEE R~ Fixed assets - - - - - 17,252 17,252
TR ~ 12 E R Prepayments, deposits and
H R~ other assets - - - - - 27,659 27,659
AR R = Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204891 204,891
A R=I=] Total assets 32,241,717 10,770,775 1,098,789 4,272,108 2,701,502 3,948,087 55,032,978
fafi Liabilities
RIATFLE Interest payable - - - - - 493553 493,553
MAHIKER ~ M FFsZ Accounts payable, accrued
R E fb 5 expenses and other liabilities 4,163,057 - - - - 128,080 4,291,137
TESHMTIEA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
RIS HIR Tax payable - - - - - 133560 133,560
128 FER 10 67 15 Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 37,167 37,167
IRBE R Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
B RITHREIESH Debt securities issued 6,876,400 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,127,735
B RATIRIBIE Mortgage-backed securities
issued 805,650 - 724,099 - - - 1,529,749
=Xl Total liabilities 11,845,107 4,862,849 10,014,926 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,610,397 47,430,938
FISBRMEROSE * Total interest sensitivity gap* 20,396,610 5,907,926 (8,916,137) (8,779,884) (2,344,165)

FIEGTETER Interest rate derivatives
(e (notional amounts of
BNLEE) net position)

(12,049,324) (13,823,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

*RIFASTEL BT EEE SNE RTfR
KiFH kBRI TIRIBIEHFHIRZN o

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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EMARE
—MARE E-F —EuE
—AR E=MA over ERE iR
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year AFELE  Non-interest 5t
1month  to 3 months to 1year to 5years Over 5 years bearing Total
AT TR FET TR FiET TR TR FERT
The Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
ToZT-F& As at 31 December 2010
+=HA=+—H
A= Assets
NeREHRRE Cash and short-term funds 5,124,400 378,500 226,950 - - 39,659 5,769,509
VT e LY SIS Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 645,232 645,232
PTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,372,522 1,372,522
BRAS B Loan portfolio, net 21,838,606 9,346,147 137,831 52,929 16,885 - 31,392,398
IEFRR Investment securities:
- AHEE - available-for-sale 989,784 944,843 - - - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- FEZEEHH - held-to-maturity 349,137 65,895 718,989 4,218,276 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
i A RHR R Investment in subsidiaries 3,094,913 - 3,045 889 3725 103,060 3,205,632
HEHE ISR R Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
Eijralciond Fixed assets - - - - - 15,980 15,980
USRI ~ e Kk Prepayments, deposits and
HAh R = other assets - - - - - 29,220 29,220
BRI R = Reinsurance assets - - - - - 204,891 204,891
BrEEE Total assets 31,396,840 10,735,385 1,086,815 4,272,094 2,701,446 4,000,457 54,193,037
fafi Liabilities
IVEREIESS Interest payable - - - - - 491,231 491,231
MAHIRER ~ R FFZ Accounts payable, accrued
R E M R expenses and other liabilities 4,630,792 - - - - 161,474 4,792,266
PTEEBMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 44,372 44,372
MASFLIR Tax payable - - - - - 134532 134,532
B FE BT LA £33 Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 37167 37,167
1%[@1}113"‘3 Insurance liabilities - - _ - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
B RITHRSFIES Debt securities issued 7,154,551 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 - 39,405,886
S ER Total liabilities 11,785,343 4,862,849 9,290,827 13,051,992 5,045,667 2,642,441 46,679,119
FISBRMERKROSE * Total interest sensitivity gap* 19,611,497 5,872,536 (8,204,012) (8,779,898) (2,344,221)
FIELGTETR Interest rate derivatives
(e PE (notional amounts of net
BUEE) position) (11,349,324) (14,523,333) 9,107,338 12,491,300 4,527,027

FRUTAPTESMIAESEBNE KITHR
FUEZF RN ©

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities issued.
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SAMAME
—MAME B —E
—MNAW = Over EhE PitE
Upto  Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year RAFLAE  Non-interest B
1month  to3months to 1 year to5years  Over 5years bearing Total
AEH FHT FHT FHET FHT FHET FET FHT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
FZFTNEF+=A  Asat31December 2009
=1
BrE Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 3,660,995 342,787 5,679 - - 58,337 4,067,798
RUR B RS C R Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 710,530 710,530
TESBHTIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,317,375 1,317,375
FIFRAR 25 Loan portfolio, net 36,614,171 6,978,278 123,890 57,473 14,904 - 43,788,716
IERFRR Investment securities:
- AMEHE - available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
- HHEZEH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5,817,998
SRR Il ST IR Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 115,190 115,190
BEE R~ Fixed assets - - - - - 21,257 21,257
TSI ~ e R Prepayments, deposits and
HAth 7= other assets - - - - - 32,595 32,595
BRE R~ Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
BrEEE Total assets 41,978,700 9,252,181 1,326,038 3,155,361 491,239 3,547,105 59,750,624
il Liabilities
IR Interest payable - - - - - 445,787 445,787
RIHIKER - R FFsZ Accounts payable, accrued
R E M55 expenses and other liabilities 4,133,740 - - - - 140437 4274177
TESHIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
RIS Tax payable - - - - - 138,329 138,329
12 JER I 67 15 Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 15,209 15,209
IRES AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BAITRSIES Debt securities issued 6,043,151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 44,495,073
B RITIRIBIE S Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,051,120 - 229116 740,158 - - 2020,3%
=Xl Total liabilities 11,228,011 6,293,644 6,893,550 20,428,930 5,805,072 2,360,326 53,009,533
FESREHROSE * Total interest sensitivity gap* 30,750,689 2,958,537  (5,567,512) (17,273,569) (5,313,833)
MELTET A Interest rate derivatives
(B2 8m (notional amounts of net
BN EE) position) (13,406,010) (13,453,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536

FRUTATEESR T AEE SN E RIT
FiEH RE ZITIRIBIES RN ©

* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

securities and the mortgage-backed securities issued.
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=MNABE
—MNAKRE E—F —FHE
—MNAA Z=1H Over ERF PitE
Upto Over 1 month 3months  Over 1year RFMKE  Non-interest B
1month  to3months to 1year toSyears  Over5years bearing Total
P VNE]] FET FEL FET FHBT FHT FHT FHT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=ZEThF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—A”
B’rE Assets
NeRERRE Cash and short-term funds 3,550,348 325,750 - - - 48,654 3,924,752
RUEH B LR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 698,809 698,809
TTEESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1273102 1,273,102
DURAE A B8 Loan portfolio, net 33,645,048 6,978,278 123,890 55,044 14,903 - 40,817,163
IEHRR Investment securities:
- AEHE — available-for-sale 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3613064
- HAEEDH - held-to-maturity 502,010 1,000,024 741,741 3,097,888 476,335 - 5817998
NG A Investment in subsidiaries 1,628,130 - - 2,390 - 103,060 1,733,580
H}I%U}W} B’ Investment in a jointly controlled
entity = = = = = 120,554 120,554
[EE &= Fixed assets - - - - - 19,000 19,000
MSHIN - HE R Prepayments, deposits and other
A5 7= assets - - - - - 36,681 36,681
BRE A= Reinsurance assets - - - - - 266,101 266,101
ORI Total assets 40,527,060 9,235,144 1,320,359 3,155,322 491,238 3,591,681 58,320,804
R Liabilities
RAHF & Interest payable - - - - - 442,217 442,217
MASIKFER « RS FFsZ Accounts payable, accrued
R EH At (R expenses and other liabilities 4,724,843 = = = = 186,101 4,910,949
TAESRT A Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 158,246 158,246
NI Tax payable - - - - - 131,850 131,850
1% RS I A R Deferred tax liabilities - - = = = 15,213 15213
FRES T 1R Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1462318 1462318
B AITHRS IS Debt securities issued 6043151 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 - 44,495,073
MEEE Total liabilities 10,767,999 6,293,644 6,664,434 19,688,772 5,805,072 2,395,945 51,615,866
N EGRERRD S47 *  Total interest sensitivity gap* 29,759,061 2,941,500  (5,344,075) (16,533,450) (5,313,834)
FIRPTET A Interest rate derivatives (notional
(Feeamn amounts of net position)
ERE =) (12,481,010) (14,378,873) 2,715,050 18,876,598 5,361,536
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* pefore the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
securities issued.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to repay its
payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of loans. Liquidity
risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows and outflows of funds
on a daily basis and projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of
funds across a full maturity spectrum. The Group has established
diversified funding sources to support the growth of its business and the
maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are
regularly reviewed by ALCO.
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(@) Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The table below presents cash flows payable by the Group under non-

AFHRIFEIFETESRMAG - A AT derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial liabilities that will be
HELENTESRAGRASIE settled on a net basis and derivative financial instruments that will be

EEERNTESRITANIESRE °
KABEEH ST N TN E L RFTELIN
BEREXFHAES N
HY B I E R AR SRF S ST A R » AR5

settled on gross basis by remaining contractual maturities as at the
end of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the table are
EME the projected contractual undiscounted cash flows including future

interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual

9 ?ﬁilﬂ@%& AEAMEELEEN maturity. The Group’s derivatives include interest rate swaps that
TR HA A R iR S B S E 5 will be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that will be
[EJfE A o settled on gross basis.
=AML
—"AULE E-F —ELE
—1"AR EZ=1A over FRE
Upto  Over 1 month 3 months over 1year AFNE 5t
1month  to 3 months to 1year to5years  Over5years Total
KA FiEn T FET Fi#RT FiEn FET
The Group HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoF-FTF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
EOTEI SR Non-derivative cash outflows
ik Liabilities
B ARITHRSIESH Debt securities issued (3,061,008) (4,276,684) (10,993,225) (18,139,060) (5,411,079) (41,881,056)
B RITIRBIES Mortgage-backed securities issued (28,149) (48,586) (1,297,405  (165,619) - (1,539,759)
(3,089,157)  (4,325,270) (12,290,630) (18,304,679) (5,411,079) (43,420,815)
FTEIRA/(RE) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BT EELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHEEHIA : settled:
- AEEE - on net basis 1,664 (9,484) (3,477) (19,051) 395 (29,953)
- BEEE - 0on gross basis
?ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ Total outflow (1,722,875)  (2,233,067) (4,795,337) (9,668,024) - (18,419,303)
MALE Total inflow 1,720,668 2,235,002 4,813,110 9,668,812 - 18,437,592
(543) (7,549) 14,296 (18,263) 395 (11,664)
=MABLE
—MABLE - —LE
—*ARn Z=1MH over FRE
Upto Over1month 3 months Over 1 year AFNE ot
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to5years  Over5 years Total
AAF FET FHET FHET FET FET FET
The Company HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FoE-FF As at 31 December 2010
+=HA=t+—H
FEHTEN SR Non-derivative cash outflows
Wikbx Liabilities
BAITRSIESH Debt securities issued (3,339,195) (4,276,684) (10,993,225) (18,139,060) (5,411,079) (42,159,243)
PrERSHA /R Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BTy EEEED Derivative financial instrument
TESHIA: settled:
- BEEE - onnet basis 1,664 (9,484) (3,477) (19,051) 395 (29,953)
- BEEE - 0n gross basis
ﬁﬁ BAN Total outflow (1,722,875)  (2,233,067) (4,795,337) (9,668,024) - (18,419,303)
MALE Total inflow 1,720,668 2,235,002 4,813,110 9,668,812 - 18,437,592
(543) (7,549) 14,296 (18,263) 395 (11,664)
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SAMAME
—MAME & —ERE
—MNAK E=AH Over ERF
Upto  Over 1month 3 months Qver 1 year REUE B
1 month to 3 months to 1 year to S years Over 5 years Total
REH FHT T FHET FTHET FHT T
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=FTh&F As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—H
ELTEIN SR Non-derivative cash outflows
ffi Liabilities
BRITHRSIES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715)  (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
B RATIRIBIE S Mortgage-backed securities issued (49,315) (30,227) (401,388)  (1,611,674) - (2,092,604)
(1,167,938)  (3,745,549)  (8,319,346) (29,695,389)  (7,500,004) (50,428,226)
FTEISRA/(RH) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BRYEEEER Derivative financial instrument
THESHRIA : settled:
- BEMEE - 0n net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- BEEE - 0n gross basis
Difaspat-i Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371)  (23,236,701)
A LA Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4,187,431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
=MNAKE
—MNABE 3 —FpE
—MNAW ==1A Over ZRF
Upto  Over 1month 3 months Qver 1year RENE B
1 month to 3months to 1year to 5 years Over 5 years Total
E/NE]| FEL T FHT FHEL FET T
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=FTThF As at 31 December 2009
+=-—A=+—H
ENTETE R Non-derivative cash outflows
R Liabilities
B AITRSIES Debt securities issued (1,118,623)  (3,715,322)  (7,917,958) (28,083,715)  (7,500,004) (48,335,622)
PTEINSRAN/ Rt Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
BTy EELEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHEEFRMIA - settled:
- BEEE - 0n net basis (11,212) (5,829) (84,151) (31,888) (7,253) (140,333)
- BEEE - 0n gross basis
Pt peX-il Total outflow (1,363,581)  (1,276,362)  (4,185,396) (15,797,991) (613,371)  (23,236,701)
A SER Total inflow 1,357,584 1,281,986 4187431 15,792,814 608,060 23,227,875
(17,209) (205) (82,116) (37,065) (12,564) (149,159)
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(b) ZEAE 24 (b) Maturity analysis

TREEZRBREESHEH B FR The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into
BAR DR 2 R R AT © relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the

end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

—*ALLE  =AMANE
E=1A E-F —EUE

ENEEI% —1An Over over ERE
Repayable Upto 1monthto  3months Over1year AENE FERREA 5t
on demand 1month  3months  to1year to5years Over5 years Undated Total
KA FET FiET Fitn FiET FExT Fin Fitn FET
The Group HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F-E2—FF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
i Assets
NeMERRE Cash and short-term funds 49,471 5,200,410 407,992 244,776 - - - 5,902,649
WRAE Loan portfolio 8,004 669,748 816,647 4,105,789 18,246,086 11,412,991 1,701 35,260,966
IEHFIER Investment securities
- A E - available-for-sale - 499,888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- BEEEH — held-to-maturity - - - 1,068,126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
BRE B = Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
57,475 6,370,046 1,807,365 5,975,305 22,825,656 14,093,827 1,675,931 52,805,605
fafi Liabilities
IRBG L5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
B RITHREIUE S Debt securities issued - 2,989,516 4,106,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,127,735
B R1TIRBIES  Mortgage-backed securities issued - 27934 69,328 1269451 163,036 - - 1,529,749
- 3017450 4,176,299 11,741,321 16,676,747 5,045,667 1,773,665 42,431,149
—ABUE  EMAME
Z=1H -5 —ENE
BNET IR -*ARn over over EHE
Repayable Upto 1monthto 3 months Over1year HEENE FeBRHA ot
on demand 1month  3months  to1year to5years Over5 years Undated Total
AAF FHT FixT Fitn Fi#T Fi#x Fitn FHET FHT
The Company HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FoB—FF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
#re Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 36,918 5,127,141 378,500 226,950 - - - 5,769,509
KBS Loan portfolio 7,406 538,747 746,117 3,789,361 17,322,877 8,988,252 1,665 31,394,425
IEFIR A Investment securities
- AMEHE - available-for-sale - 499888 582,726 556,614 295,399 - 1,469,339 3,403,966
- HHEZEEH - held-to-maturity - - - 1,068,126 4,284,171 2,680,836 - 8,033,133
BRE R = Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 204,891 204,891
44,324 6,165,776 1,707,343 5,641,051 21,902,447 11,669,088 1,675,895 48,805,924
fifik Liabilities
EL MR R Other payable - 14112 27,809 270,949 154,864 - - 467,734
IRES AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,773,665 1,773,665
B RITHRSIUE S Debt securities issued - 3,267,667 4,106,971 10,471,870 16,513,711 5,045,667 - 39,405,886

- 3,281,779 4,134,780 10,742,819 16,668,575 5,045,667 1,773,665 41,647,285
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—MARE  =MAMRE
E=1A B —FAL

el —1MAR Over Over ZhEF
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months ~ Over 1 year RENE TR B
on demand 1month 3 months to 1 year toSyears Over 5years Undated Total
AREH FET FET FET FET FHT FET FET THT
The Group HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
F_=ZhF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—8
B Assets
Y& KkEiEE  Cashand shortterm funds 57,248 3593937 410934 5,679 - - - 4,067,798
BIREE Loan portfolio 11,181 1,039,425 879,296 4,454,273 18,062,261 19,331,884 24,407 43,802,727
ESRR Investment securities
- Al E — available-for-sale - 1,201524 931,092 454,728 - - 1025720 3,613,064
- HAEEEH - held-to-maturity = 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
FIRBG 7 7= Reinsurance assets = - - - - - 266101 266,101
68,429 5989957 2,858,563 5938,354 21,587,938 19,808,219 1,316,228 57,567,688
B Liabilities
PRI 7L £ Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
BRITHRSIEH Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663947 7,369,542 25318031 5,904,860 — 44,495,073
BAITIZBIES  Mortgage-backed securities issued - 53,369 64,783 361,301 1,540,941 - - 2,020,394
- 1,292062 4,728,730 7,730,843 26,858,972 5904860 1,462,318 47,977,785
—MARE  =EMAME
E=41A & &5t
EDet 5|29 —1MAW Over Over ZRE
Repayable Upto  1monthto 3months  Over 1year RENUE TR BE
on demand 1 month 3 months to 1 year to5years Over 5 years Undated Total
/N FHET FHET TET TET FHET BT TEx FHET
The Company HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000
T-EFThF As at 31 December 2009
+=A=+—A8
e Assets
Y& kFEEIREE  Cashand short-term funds 44,740 3573012 307,000 - - - - 3924752
BIEE Loan portfolio 9,543 891,005 801,897 4,129,092 16,885,678 18,090,064 23,859 40,831,138
IR Investment securities
- AHHE — available-for-sale - 1,201,524 931,092 454,728 = - 1025720 3,613,064
- BAZRIE - held-to-maturity - 155,071 637,241 1,023,674 3,525,677 476,335 - 5817,998
BIRE R 7= Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 266,101 266,101
54,283 5820612 2,677,230 5,607,494 20,411,355 18,566,399 1,315,680 54,453,053
ki Liabilities
E A RN Other payable 13,246 27,218 118075 429,786 2,783 - - 591,108
REG AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1462318 1,462,318
B RITHRSIES Debt securities issued - 1,238,693 4,663947 7,369,542 25318031 5,904,860 — 44,495,073
13246 1,265911 4,782,022 7,799,328 25320814 5904860 1,462,318 46,548,499
B B oh - R7UCR B ROCER - TS 3R & In addition to the above, interest and remittance receivables,
Bt NATFLE - RTINS T prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts payable,
T REMARI - MBS E+=—_A=1+—H accrued expenses and tax payable are expected to be recovered or
IRy 12N A UL Bl S E R o TmAEN 550K settled within twelve months from 31 December. Other assets and
MR EME =MAG  WMBHH+=A liabilities included in the statement of financial position are expected
=f+—HREITHEZ@12MN A 74 gel= sk to be recovered or settled in a period more than twelve months after
21k ° 31 December.
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3.5 Mortgage insurance risk

The Group offers mortgage insurance which provides cover to the
Approved Sellers/Servicers for first credit losses of up to 25% - 30% of
the property value of a residential mortgage loan with loan-to-value
ratio below 90% at origination, or other ratios as specified from time
to time.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the
insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the resulting
claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random
and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability
is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk that the Group
faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims exceed the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because
the frequency or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and
benefits will vary from year to year from the estimate established using
statistical techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected outcome
will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected
across the board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type of mortgage
insurance risks accepted and within each of the key categories to
achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability
of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors.
The most significant are a downturn of the economy and a slump in the
local property market. Economic downturn, which may cause a rise in
defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims. A drop in property
prices, where the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance of
the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent insurance
eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set aside for meeting
future claim payments, the Group calculates technical reserves on
prudent liability valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-share reinsurance
from its approved mortgage reinsurers and excess-of-l0ss reinsurance
arrangement in an effort to limit its risk exposure. The Group conducts
comprehensive assessment including the financial strength and credit
ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the approved
selection framework set by the Credit Committee. The approved
mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic reviews.
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3.6
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3.6

As at 31 December 2010, if total loss ratio had increased by 1%, profit
before tax for the year would have been HK$4 million (2009: HK$1.7
million) lower. If total loss ratio had decreased by 1%, profit before tax for
the year would have been HK$4 million (2009: HK$1.7 million) higher.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Fair value estimate are made at a specific point in time based on relevant
market information and the characteristics of the financial instruments.

The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts and
fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly presented on the
Group's statement of financial position at their fair value. Bid prices are
used to estimate fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied for
liabilities. For all other financial instruments that are not measured at fair
value, the fair value is approximately equal to their carrying value.

RE{E AFE
Carrying value Fair value
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FHT FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Financial assets
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 5,902,649 4,067,798 5,902,649 4,067,798
BIRABE B Loan portfolio, net 35,258,937 43,788,716 35,258,937 43,788,716
AR Investment securities
- BEZREH — held-to-maturity 8,033,133 5,817,998 8,183,264 5,935,727
SRR Financial liabilities
H 1% Other liabilities 4,163,057 4,133,740 4,163,057 4,133,740
B R ITRSIEH Debt securities issued 37,190,615 = 41,648925 37,193,268 41,655,241
B RITIRIBIE S Mortgage-backed securities issued 1,529,749 2,020,394 1,524,932 2,011,421
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The following methods and assumptions have been used to estimate
the fair values of financial instruments:

(@) Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair value
of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The estimated fair
value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than 3 months,
is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
Therefore, the fair value of the deposits is approximately equal to
their carrying value.

(b) Loan portfolio, net, and mortgage-backed securities issued under
the MBS Pass-Through Programme

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An insignificant
portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore, the
carrying value of loan portfolio and the mortgage-backed securities
issued is a reasonable estimate of the fair value.
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(c) Investment securities

=

=

Investment securities include only interest-bearing assets held to
maturity, assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at
fair value. Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market
prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available,
adiscounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the Bauhinia MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted market
prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are not available,
a discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities represent the deferred consideration used for
credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
("HKSAR") in December 2003 and January 2004. The fair value of
other liabilities approximates the carrying amount.

Financial instruments measured at fair value in the financial
statements

There is no (2009: nil) financial instrument measured at fair value
using a valuation technique that is not supported by observable
market data.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table shows financial instruments recognised at fair

value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

e Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1),

¢ Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

e Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
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3.7

FEH F47
The Group The Company
5B -8 BE $-B -l = 5t
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Fitn FHT Fitn Fix Fi#n Fix
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-E—FF As at 31 December 2010
+=A=+—H
#BrE Assets
MTEEHIEA Derivative financial instruments - 1,396,621 1,396,621 - 1,372,522 1,372,522
IERIER Investment securities
- AHHE - available-for-sale 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966 1,469,339 1,934,627 3,403,966
1,469,339 3,331,248 4,800,587 1,469,339 3,307,149 4,776,488
fafi Liabilities
TESHRTIA Derivative financial instruments - 44,372 44,372 - 44,372 44,372
A H AR 48 LA Debt securities issued designated as at
NEHEZIT A= fair value through profit or loss upon
KB &fTRSIESH initial recognition - 1,937,120 1,937,120 - 1,937,120 1,937,120
- 1,981,492 1,981,492 - 1,981,492 1,981,492
AEH AR
The Group The Company
S E-p B 2R 2-R E i
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TR FET TET TET THT TET
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=EThEF As at 31 December 2009
+=—B=+—H
B Assets
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments - 1317375 1,317,375 - 1273102 1,273,102
IEFRR Investment securities
- AfHE - available-for-sale 1,104,186 2,508,878 3613064 1,104,185 2,508,878 3,613,064
1,104,186 3,826,253 4,930,439 1,104,186 3,781,980 4,886,166
R Liabilities
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments - 158,246 158,246 - 158,246 158,246
Y EHINET F8 E A LA Debt securities issued designated as at
NHEZIT AR fair value through profit or loss upon
KB KfTRSIES initial recognition - 2,846,148 2,846,148 - 2,846,148 2,846,148
- 3,004,394 3,004,394 - 3,004,394 3,004,394

AEARARAFEFEEANRETE=Z
MERTE -

HAAEE

REFAER AR (RRFBERY T MR
RERKE R [#as] A7) BT

o A EBRAITHX BN MK G &+
(M E B ]) HIER R AHE

o« BIRAERBEEENES  ABRSH
AR IREEEIIR

7/

Neither the Group nor the Company hold any financial instruments
recognised as Level 3.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity’ on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

¢ To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial Secretary
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“Financial Secretary”);

¢ T0 safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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¢ T0 support the Group’s stability and growth;

¢ T0 allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to optimise
risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

e TO maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management in accordance with the guidelines issued by the
Financial Secretary. The minimum Capital-to-Assets ratio (“CAR") stipulated
in the guidelines is 5%. The CAR is calculated as a ratio, expressed as a
percentage, of the Group’s total capital base to the sum of its total on-
balance sheet and total off-balance sheet risk-weighted exposures.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the Board of
Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the guidelines issued by
the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely breach of the CAR guidelines
must be reported to the Financial Secretary.

The Group's capital base comprises share capital, retained profits and
contingency reserve created by appropriations of retained profits,
allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment and other
reserves.

The capital adequacy framework takes into account different levels of risk
embedded in assets. Conversion factors are applied to assets according
to their nature and reflecting an estimate of underlying risks, taking into
account any eligible collateral or guarantee. A similar treatment is adopted
for off-balance sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the
more contingent nature of the potential losses.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and the ratios
of the Group as at the end of the reporting period. During the year, the
Group complied with all of the capital requirement set by the Financial

Secretary.

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R& S Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE @A Retained profits 4,561,624 3,925,694
MBS % Contingency reserve 437,435 189,833
HEiER Other reserves 265,057 160,329

A A A E SRR E Allowance for loan impairment under
FriEZ 5% collective assessment 2,029 14,011
AR Total capital base 7,266,145 6,289,867
RAIR = L & CAR 10.8% 9.5%
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4. RESTHEITRRIZ
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4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on
a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements
as to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowersina
group or economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of
impairment similar to those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash
flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce
any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

4.2 Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair value,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the area that created them. All models are validated
before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk,
volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair
value of financial instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

4.3 Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
among other factors, the normal volatility in listed price. In addition,
impairment may be appropriate when there is evidence of a deterioration
inthe financial health of the investment, industry and sector performance,
changes in technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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4.4 Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
as held-to-maturity. This classification requires significant judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates its intention and ability
to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to keep these
investments to maturity other than for the specific circumstances defined
in HKAS 39, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as available-
for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.

4.5 Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for profits tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities such
as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest
the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
business. The Group is also organised in such a way that performance is
measured at Group level in a single segment for mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the mortgage
business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong Kong, Korea,
Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes the mortgage business
in Hong Kong. The segment for non-Hong Kong includes the mortgage assets in
Korea, investment in a jointly controlled entity in Malaysia and investment in a
subsidiary in Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China. The Chief Operating Decision
maker assesses the performance based on geographical segments.

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information for operating
segments of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.
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=i EEE 2E
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FERT FET TFHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE-F—FTF+-HA=1+—HILEE Yearended 31 December 2010
FEWA Interest income 905,246 236,137 1,141,383
FEZH Interest expense (96,906) (73,896) (170,802)
AT EA Net interest income 808,340 162,241 970,581
Hib A Other income 583,623 4,176 587,799
ZEWRA Operating income 1,391,963 166,417 1,558,380
ZREZH Operating expenses (136,842) (34,583) (171,425)
RITRERTNZ E& A Operating profit before impairment 1,255,121 131,834 1,386,955
THORE R Write-back of loan impairment allowances 16,663 - 16,663
7 5 2E R ] SE 4R ) Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 2,259 2,259
R A& A Profit before taxation 1,271,784 134,093 1,405,877
I Taxation (172,015)
N A Profit for the year 1,233,862
FRRAFEZ Capital expenditure during the year 8,802 64 8,866
B e300 B
HongKong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FAT FHT FHxT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE_TTNF+_A=+—HIEFE Yearended 31 December 2009
FB U A Interest income 1,056,085 282,216 1,338,301
BT H Interest expense (176,106) (124,488) (300,594)
AR SN Net interest income 879,979 157,728 1,037,707
E AU Other income 230,584 1,004 231,588
ZEWA Operating income 1,110,563 158,732 1,269,295
ZEx Operating expenses (123,337) (34,499) (157,836)
RIDBERA E =T Operating profit before impairment 987,226 124,233 1,111,459
DURORERIK Write-back of loan impairment allowances 36,837 - 36,837
R e 2k [FZE I SR Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 1,922 1,922
BRAR AT A Profit before taxation 1,024,063 126,155 1,150,218
I Taxation (144,186)
RNE A Profit for the year 1,006,032
FRNRAFZ Capital expenditure during the year 15,111 2,734 17,845

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



&t EEE 28
Hong Kong Non-Hong Kong Total
FET FET FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=F-FF+=-HA=1+—H As at 31 December 2010
DB FE Segment assets 42,832,359 12,069,899 54,902,258
HEHRHI SRR R Investment in a jointly controlled entity - 130,720 130,720
BrEEE Total assets 42,832,359 12,200,619 55,032,978
MR Segment liabilities 35,477,850 11,953,088 47,430,938
B EEHH HER
HongKong  Non-Hong Kong Total
FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F_EENFF+_A=1+— As at 31 December 2009
DB Segment assets 44,027,821 15,607,613 59,635,434
HEE ISR 3 Investment in a jointly controlled entity - 115,190 115,190
H"rEEE Total assets 44,027,821 15,722,803 59,750,624
DEAGR Segment liabilities 37,511,123 15,498,410 53,009,533
6. FIEUWA 6. Interestincome
ANER
The Group
2010 2009
FiET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RRAE Loan portfolio 855,015 1,060,315
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 31,311 36,328
IEAIER — £ Investment securities - listed 75,054 82,176
IEAER — dEEm Investment securities — unlisted 180,003 159,482
1,141,383 1,338,301

AREFE B UA BHE323,000/8 7T (ZEENF -
488,000 7T) MNRIE A

7. FIEZH

BRI HA o

7. Interest expense

Included within interest income is HK$323,000 for the year (2009: HK$488,000)
with respect to interest income accrued on individually impaired loans.

NEH
The Group
2010 2009
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MTRFRBREIEHR Bank loans, debt and MBS issued wholly repayable
B A TS RIZIBIE 5 within 5 years 143,647 241,376
BT hFERBRERNE 1T Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
55 RIRIBUE 5 within 5 years 27,155 59,218
170,802 300,594

AREFEF B H B4 167,000,000 70 (ZEEH,
£ :221,000,0007%70) FHIEA A FEEELITAR

HOSBAE -

—Z—-ZFFR ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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8. HgA 8. Other income
&
The Group

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE R EE A RS BT Early prepayment fees and late charges 18,278 19,742
BEAHRE 28 (FHE14) Net insurance premiums earned (Note 14) 417,931 149,429
LR ZER Exchange difference 35,479 5,833
BT AERNFEEY Change in fair value of financial instruments 309 13,011
AT TR AR BURA Dividend income from available-for-sale listed investments 43,595 42,224

HH & AT B IR R A e 3 AT Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
(MHE11)) (Note 11) 64,752 5,277
1) Others 7.455 (3,928)
587,799 231,588

CRMIEANTFEZRFALTUTSIA LM :
() FEEANAFEN RN RITEAFE RS
188,000,000 77T (= ZFZ N4 : 5#1783,300,000
PST0) AR B 2 FE S 457 183,000,000 7% 7T
(ZEZhF : Yrz5785,400,000787T) ¢ K (i) 5
EHURFEEAIT ARROITETEAFER
#= 10,000,000 77T (ZFZFN4F  5#131,600,000
BIT) RIEEUAFEZRAITARENE L1710
SAEH A F{E S 15,000,000 87T (ZZFNF

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of (i)
HK$188 million fair value gain on hedging instruments designated as fair value
hedge (2009: HK$783.3 million loss) and HK$183 million fair value loss on the
hedged items (2009: HK$785.4 million gain); and (ii) HK$10 million fair value
gain on derivatives designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2009:
HK$31.6 million loss) and HK$15 million fair value loss on issued debt securities
designated as at fair value through profit or l0ss (2009: HK$42.5 million gain).

&5 42,500,00087T) °

9. £¥EXH 9. Operating expenses
AEEH
The Group
2010 2009
TF#ET FET
HK$'000 HKS'000
2 R B AN Staff costs
Fra KAEn Salaries and benefits 107,797 102,633
BIREKAN — FEHRITL Pension costs — defined contribution plans 5,706 5,608
IS Premises
e Rental 7,800 7,268
EAfih Others 6,679 7,050
ExMe Directors’ emoluments - -
718 (FfFE 24) Depreciation (Note 24) 12,928 10,890
W2 EMARSS Financial information services 5,510 5,593
JBi ] 2% Consultancy fees 12,494 6,702
HEaR2EL W Other operating expenses 12,511 12,092
171,425 157,836
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10. Auditor’s remuneration

NEH
The Group
2010 2009
FHERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HIZARS Audit services 880 867
HAbARSS Other services 859 1,186
1,739 2,053
1. HETH#HERTFHYR S 11. Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
SR investments
ANEHA
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
tH & AT HH B R A U S A Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments:
- T—A—BZYIEFHEZNFEIA - realisation of amounts recognised in reserves up to
AR (B 31) 1 January (note 31) 40,554 3,522
- RNFEFEWER R — net gain arising in current year 24,198 1,755
64,752 5,277
12. ERRA{E E ¥ 12. Write-back of loan impairment allowances
ANEH
The Group
2010 2009
FERT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIFURER Write-back of loan impairment allowances —
— HE G (FFE 20(0) collective assessment (Note 20 (b)) 16,663 36,837

—ZE—FFHEIR ANNUAL REPORT 2010

107



108 #am&mEME NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. #HIn 13. Taxation
@) THRERBRFRATRHUBETR (@) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
AREH
The Group
2010 2009
FET TFET
HK$'000 HKS'000
BBFISH Hong Kong profits tax
- REEKRE — Provision for current year 171,681 126,419
- JAFERETRE — Underprovision in prior years 16 15,110
171,697 141,529
16 JEF I Deferred taxation
- ANFELH — Charge for current year 318 2,657
172,015 144,186
S EF 2 7= AR Y il T R IR B s F AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2009:
16.5% (ZZEZNF : 16.5%) KB =T 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Deferred
REBHNERK R - BEFRITUAR G taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences under the
EE16.5% (ZETLF - 16.5%) E liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2009:
ERERITESEEOER Z - 16.5%).

REANBRBIDENOTMERAE The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
BRHEITENBILSTMEROT ¢ theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

AEH
The Group

2010 2009

FET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

B A& Al Profit before taxation 1,405,877 1,150,218

#£16.5% (ZZEFNEF : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of

B RITHE 16.5% (2009:16.5%) 231,970 189,786
R 5 2[R 1) 35 45 7 8 Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly controlled

5= entity (373) (317)

LS O LON Income not subject to taxation (82,023) (91,044)

LIk 0bie3 Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 22,425 30,651

HEFERETR Underprovision in prior years 16 15,110

FRIFF = Taxation charge 172,015 144,186
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(b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial position

represents:
ANEH ZAN/NG|
The Group The Company

2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FHT FHET FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

BBNEHIKE Provision for Hong Kong
profits tax 133,560 138,329 134,532 131,850
12 IERR T 5 Deferred tax liabilities 37,167 15,209 37,167 15,213
170,727 153,538 171,699 147,063

F_E-FER_FFAF+_A=1
—HB - BMEEAEARE ZREFIA -

BIEBI (R 7<)/ AR EEAR IS

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at 31
December 2010 and 2009.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and the

REREZHOT - movements during the year are as follows:
AEEH]
The Group
RER &
IR IH Impairment
Accelerated allowances NEEEZ) P& xR
tax and IS Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions Tax losses changes hedges Total
FAT FHT FHT FHT FAT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F==F=h&F—A—H As at 1 January 2009 2,497 (13,995) (10) (4,223) (13,173) (28,904)
Tz R A HIBR Charged to the income statement 951 1,696 10 - - 2,657
TSN (F5E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
F_EZhF+=A As at 31 December 2009
=+—H 3,448 (12,299) = 33,088 (9,028) 15,209
FUezsRm (JRE)/ % (Released)/charged to the income
statement (207) 525 — — — 318
Fiam e (F£31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - - 17,307 4,333 21,640
F-E-F&£+=-A As at 31 December 2010
=g 3,241 (11,774) - 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
P/NS]|
The Company
HEKE
DR IH Impairment
Accelerated allowances NFEEE) P& Fx AR
tax and Fair value Cash flow B
depreciation provisions changes hedges Total
FHT THET FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=EThF—HA—H As at 1 January 2009 2,497 (13,990) (4,223) (13,173) (28,889)
F s RN H0kR Charged to the income statement 951 1,695 - - 2,646
FAEEME (FE31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 37,311 4,145 41,456
F=EThF+=A As at 31 December 2009
== 3,448 (12,295) 33,088 (9,028) 15,213
Flizsk M (3 [E)/ K (Released)/charged to the income statement (207) 521 - - 314
TN (F5E31)  Charged to equity (Note 31) - - 17,307 4,333 21,640
F=ZF-FTF+=A As at 31 December 2010
=qr—Ig 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167

—Z—-ZFFR ANNUAL REPORT 2010

109



14. $RABIRBE b 55 B e 223 T

110 SEMEMKRMIE NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Revenue account for mortgage insurance

business
N2
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEIRT? Gross premiums written 862,282 839,042
BIRRIRZE Reinsurance premiums (70,925) (54,392)
1REG 22280 (£ 27(0) Net premiums written (Note 27(a)) 791,357 784,650
RFHIR T RIS I 2 a0 Increase in unearned premiums, net (367,081) (613,572)
BEAAMR 2R 280 (K1E27() Net premiums earned (Note 27(a)) 424,276 171,078
FAEREBRR (FHE27(0) Claims incurred (Note 27(b)) (6,345) (21,649)
kEEEHHERSESF (F)E8)  Net premiums earned after provisions (Note 8) 417,931 149,429
BB (FhEa) Management expenses (Note a) (22,248) (14,399)
AR AR Underwriting gains 395,683 135,030
5pz3 Note
(a) BEEFAIAKEIZREIHH—H - (@) The management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 9.
15. REERF 15. Profit for the year

AN B S5 IR IR ET B A A R 1,199,473,000
BIL (CZEZNF © 973,951,000/87T) °

The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of HK$1,199,473,000 (2009: HK$973,951,000).

16. I 2

16. Dividend

Vi N/NE|
The Company
2010 2009
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EURR B ST B 0.175 87T Proposed dividend of HK$0.175
—ETNF :0.25%87T) (2009: HK$0.25) per ordinary share 350,000 500,000

T ZFEMN_STAFERESIZET -
FZE——FWOA+=ZH EFEVRE=F

S ERAKR ST BAR0.1758 T o BETEI
A& 23

AR -

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED

The dividend paid in 2010 in respect of 2009 was HK$500 million. The directors
proposed a final dividend in respect of 2010 of HK$0.175 per ordinary share
on 12 April 2011. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable
TIRNFZZT-FF+-_A=+—HBMN asat 31 December 2010.
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17. &£ REHHEE 17. Cash and short-term funds
NEH ARAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET AT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRITU® Cash at banks 49,470 57,248 36,918 44,740
RITEHATT K Time deposits with banks 5,853,179 4,010,550 5,732,591 3,880,012

5,902,649 4,067,798 5,769,509 3,924,752

#pAenRERMS - A RFRIESIME B For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
TERZBHEIT=NARNEERNER o comprise the following balances with less than three months’ maturity from
the date of transaction.

PN SIE| VNN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET AT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITUE Cash at banks 49,470 57,248 36,918 44,740
RITEFER Time deposits with banks 4,495,604 3,770,871 4,404,640 3,646,012
& MERISIE Cash and cash equivalents 4,545,074 3,828,119 4,441,558 3,690,752
18. M FI 2 BIiCE 18. Interest and remittance receivables
RS VNN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET AT FET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT & IRE SR8 Interest receivable from
- FIEITHAS 4 - interest rate swap contracts 497,467 443,221 495,491 440,007
- IEARER — investment securities 81,330 77,432 81,330 77,432
- RITEHTF — time deposits with banks 2,345 169 2,175 131
WA M S KR Interest receivable and instalments,
73 BAfTER in transit from loan portfolio 76,008 189,708 66,236 181,239
657,150 710,530 645,232 698,809
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19. fTEEMT A
(a) RBFTET A

19. Derivative financial instruments

(@) Use of derivative

RNERRNATIITE T BN AAEHR
WEmXk - F2IHAERE - RBEE
BESITENEISEMITE - HBIA
Rit&  TAETEDENARNTFEE
it A e SR 2 T E S I 2 R W
BN TE o

BEMRFFEERNA LI CRER
ME AU REBOAE - HHSH
B RS AELEGHNE TG -
BRETHRMESIN  ZERXZTIHFR
MRS - REHNERXNRANRS
WFEREBOTERTEMEERHEY
EVEERAR - AEFSEITAFE
AN EHHFLLD - RHZHRES
RN A RN o

ETHRERMIANBNEH AT
AR RN TARHE — DR
B E - ERBRBOS RH KRR
MENESHFXT AL FE " B
It A R A B A S T I B 15 DT Bk
AR KBS o b 3 T 27 A1 & FOL R AF xS
HRRHRS) - ST T ATTRE N AL
ElF=EE R (R7=) AR (RfR) g
e fTAESHMTANSHRE L
B EREMEIAFZWEE - &
MESBMAFRARZAFLE |
BEET RIEKS) - T ARITAET A
RFEHTTIX °

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge the
Group's financial risks. For accounting purposes, derivative instrument
are designated as at fair value through profit or loss or hedging
instruments under fair value or cash flow hedges as defined in
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange
one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an economic
exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination of all
these. No exchange of principal takes place except for certain
currency swaps. The Group's credit risk represents the potential cost
to replace the swap contracts if counterparties fail to perform their
obligations. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference
to the current fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the
contracts and the liquidity of the market.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide
a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on the statement
of financial position but do not necessarily indicate the amounts of
future cash flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments
and, therefore, do not indicate the Group's exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market interest
rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate
contractual or notional amount of derivative financial instruments on
hand, the extent to which instruments are favourable or unfavourable,
and thus the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The fair values
of derivative instruments held are set out below.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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KE
The Group
2010 2009
&/ AFE au/ AFfE
ZULH Fair values ATl Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional #e itk notional Br= il
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FET TR FiET FHT FHT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
() EEALATFEEL (i) Derivatives designated as at
TARERHITET A fair value through profit or loss
=4 51 Interest rate swaps 7,443,726 64,754  (26,822) 20736942 127,084  (106,858)
Cdapkit -t Currency swaps 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093) 902,100 - (993)
77,844 (34,915 127,084 (107,851)
(i) $BERNAFEN (i) Derivatives designated as
RPTET R fair value hedge
| R 3 HA Interest rate swaps 27,330,675 1,029,206 (2,819) 31,372,819 1,034,874 (2,847)
Cdapkit-t Currency swaps 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487) 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521)
1,318,777 (5,306) 1,168,741 (43,368)
(i) FBEENIE R A (ili) Derivatives designated as
BATETA cash flow hedge
SR currency swaps 2,354,149 - (4,151) 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027)
- (4,151) 21,550 (7,027)
BHIATAER /(A R) Total recognised derivative
B assets/(liabilities) 1,396,621 (44,372) 1,317,375 (158,246)
pVNG|
The Company
2010 2009
&t/ AFE a4/ NFE
EAE ] Fair values G Fair values
Contract/ Contract/
notional #E i notional "= i
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
FHT Fitn Fi#T THT FET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
(i) FEEULFEEL (i) Derivatives designated as at
TPARESHPTET A fair value through profit or loss
H == HR Interest rate swaps 7,443,726 64,754 (26,822) 20,736,942 127,084 (106,858)
iz Currency swaps 7,342,056 13,090 (8,093) 902,100 - (993)
77,844 (34,915) 127,084 (107,851)
(i) #EE RN LFHEXH (i) Derivatives designated as
HOTETA fair value hedge
H| 2=t HR Interest rate swaps 26,630,675 1,005,107 (2,819) 30,447,819 990,601 (2,847)
Srhie R Currency swaps 7,488,846 289,571 (2,487) 8,629,385 133,867 (40,521)
1,294,678 (5,306) 1,124,468 (43,368)
(i) FBEE NI LR A (ili) Derivatives designated as
RPTETE cash flow hedge
ket Currency swaps 2,354,149 - (4,151) 11,760,464 21,550 (7,027)
- (4,151) 21,550 (7,027)
BRINSTER /(5 fR) Total recognised derivative
BEN assets/(liabilities) 1,372,522 (44,372) 1,273,102 (158,246)

(b) XFH5ES

(b) Hedging activities

DT T EJ A FEX R I 2R
Ao IR E - AKE S X

AR -

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if they
are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges.
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() ATE 0
AEEHATENSEERERT
REEE B S MTAATENERT
AT BAOFIERROFIHR
S -

(i) T T (i)
AEFE BRI ST ST
BT 2 BT AN S KT
RS SNCRE °

() EERARBEARRSHINE (©
EERANEEMATNHENELE
BENITETESLKA - BEKRKE
BT R B & SR AR IR R AN X 53 7= b R 45
5| (HE3.7) tEME I - AEEMR
BEIRZSNFTNEANER

Fair value hedges

The Group's fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate
and currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
resulting from any potential change in fair value of fixed rate
financial instruments.

Cash flow hedges

The Group hedges a portion of foreign exchange risks arising from
variability of cash flows from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments using currency swaps under cash flow hedge.

Replacement costs and potential future credit expenses

The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all derivative
contracts that have a positive value when marked to market. The
potential future credit exposure amounts refer to the amount as
computed in accordance with the Capital-to-Assets ratio guidelines
(Note 3.7). The Group has not experienced any non-performance by

its counterparties.

METAESANEEKRAREEARK
ERRARSHET T - ZE2HH
THASRZWNFHITRAEE L HE

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure amounts
of the derivative contracts are as follows. These amounts do not
take into account the effects of bilateral netting arrangements with

KIS © the counterparties.
N
The Group
2010 2009
BERRK JBIERR
EERE {SEEMPE BERAR fET XS
Replacement Potential future Replacement  Potential future
cost credit exposure cost  credit exposure
FET TFHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ESSEY Interest rate contracts
- AEigH — Interest rate swaps 1,442,892 139,612 1,556,847 182,660
LEREY Exchange rate contracts
- trhigHl — Currency swaps 332,268 661,650 184,827 945,386
1,775,160 801,262 1,741,674 1,128,046
ZIN/NG|
The Company
2010 2009
BERRK JBIEARR
EERE {SEEMPE BERAR fET XS
Replacement Potential future Replacement  Potential future
cost credit exposure cost  credit exposure
FET TFHET FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ESSEY Interest rate contracts
— A== HA — Interest rate swaps 1,416,817 139,612 1,509,359 179,160
LEREY Exchange rate contracts
- trhigHl — Currency swaps 332,268 661,650 184,827 945,386
1,749,085 801,262 1,694,186 1,124,546

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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20. FRRAEHE 20. Loan portfolio, net
() RRAEGRKE (@) Loan portfolio less allowance
REH ZAN/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAT FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRIRAEE Mortgage portfolio
F= Residential
- BF — Hong Kong 18,081,110 21,980,141 14,932,355 20,323,237
— &b — Overseas 11,912,250 15,441,285 11,912,250 15,441,285
e Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
EAEE Securitised portfolio (Note 33)
(Fff5E33) 717,786 1,314,685 - -
FRIBIIFAE Non-mortgage portfolio 549,820 1,066,616 549,820 1,066,616
35,260,966 43,802,727 31,394,425 40,831,138
TTRORE T & Allowance for loan impairment (2,029) (14,011) (2,027) (13,975)
35,258,937 43,788,716 31,392,398 40,817,163
FF=F—=F+=ZA=+—H ' UK As at 31 December 2010, the mortgage portfolio had a weighted
HENNEETE - RRITTARHIERE average remaining term of 9 years (2009: 9 years) on a contractual
IHIREERHBERT - RIBITFHA basis, without taking into account any prepayment of local mortgage
BRI ERERNLE (ZF loans. Final maturity of the mortgage portfolio is in the year 2050.
F:NF) - BB/EIFAEGRET=ZF
REFH|E]
TIRORER & B G TRA A RARE L Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the outstanding
ReEROBDLLAT : principal balances of the loan portfolio is as follows:
REH AR
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
TIRORER & Total allowance for loan
BAES *ﬁ?xiﬁé\ impairment as a percentage of
BEIRA 7> the gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.03% 0.01% 0.03%
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(b) BIBEREESHETRBELE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio
NEFA ZN/N|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FHIT FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE T Collective assessment
F—H—8 As at 1 January 14,011 50,536 13,975 49,773
WA TR Loans written off - (2,748) - (2,748)
Tz &M E Released to income statement
(Fff5£12)) (Note 12) (16,663) (36,837) (16,629) (36,110)
LBl 2 3 £ BT R Recoveries of loans previously
written off 4,760 3,382 4,760 3,382
% ZITDER [E] Unwind of discount on allowance (79) (322) (79) (322)
THT=-A=+—H Asat31December 2,029 14,011 2,027 13,975
EH IR E K &R - B & R HER T Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into account
HHIWB R B aITE - BEHEIH the current market value of the collateral of the delinquent loan.
EE IR R AAEH RER % - There is no impairment provided for overseas and commercial
FW - ERORER &7,0008 T (ZF mortgage portfolio. During the year, allowance for loan impairment of
TN : 2,641,00087T) B ik = U HK$7,000 (2009: HK$2,641,000) has been transferred to repossessed
e (KE25) © assets (Note 25).
AR E AT R B B R E DT R Individually impaired loans collectively assessed under portfolio basis
Mo are analysed as follows:
& ZN/N|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FHT FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BUETITRAEA B8 Gross impaired loan portfolio 278 5,377 278 5,377
RRORER % Allowance for loan impairment (22) (1,811) (22) (1,811)
256 3,566 256 3,566
IRORER S S Allowance for loan impairment
BB HAEE as a percentage of gross
BAMB impaired loan portfolio 7.9% 33.7% 7.9% 33.7%
BUETTRAESA B35 Gross impaired loan portfolio
TIsRBE B3 as a percentage of gross
HBED loan portfolio - 0.01% - 0.01%
LA4R & 72 2014 71 AT 4R 37 18 BI) 49 BT 5K Allowance for loan impairment under collective assessment for loans
BT /8 B 5% B & % 79.2,007,0007% 7T not individually identified are HK$2,007,000 (2009: HK$12,200,000).

(ZZEZ A4 : 12,200,000787T) °

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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(c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan portfolio

AREE R AR AT
The Group and the Company
2010

E{RRIWFRL
IR E FRRHA BT (KRR FR L
Present value ISV ON RIS ER
of minimum Interest income Total minimum
lease payments relating to lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F LA B ) 7 ORI Amounts receivable:
- —F R — within one year 57,467 10,492 67,959
- —FEERFNRN — after one year but within five years 193,302 31,305 224,607
- AFfF — after five years 299,051 28,696 327,747
549,820 70,493 620,313
ARERE R AR AT
The Group and the Company
2009

SRR UFE LY
KA SRR ERE]EY S IVELGEED)
Present value FBUWA FRIE AN
of minimum  Interest income  Total minimum
lease payments relatingto  lease payments
receivable future periods receivable
FHET FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F LA B ) 7 IR Amounts receivable:

- —FNRH — within one year 93,661 20,369 114,030
- —FFEERFNH — after one year but within five years 335,541 63,433 398,974
- AR/ — after five years 637,414 69,650 707,064
1,066,616 153,452 1,220,068

FZEFFS+_A=FT—HEK=ZF
ZNF+ZA=+—H  KXEARXK
73 B H o 3wt @b A A BT R U IV R
BRE -

There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable as
at 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2009 of the Group and the
Company.
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21. IEHRHF 21. Investment securities
(a) AIEHEIES (@) Available-for-sale securities
AEFARAAR]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
Tt FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAFEYIKH GRS IS Debt securities at fair value
E| s Unlisted 1,934,627 2,452,054
FHEBLET Listed in Hong Kong - 78,466
TEBUIMEX T Listed outside Hong Kong - 56,824

1,934,627 2,587,344
BN TES k8 E IS Other securities at fair value

FHEBLET Listed in Hong Kong 1,469,339 1,025,720
Al S B AR Total available-for-sale securities 3,403,966 3,613,064
HMEHIER HMERES RFEH T~ Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate
TRIEHE o investment trust.

12 & AT AL M 3 B 55 4 7] 1 B I F Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of issuers
I as follows:
AREH KA
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT R E Ah < B Banks and other financial institutions 1,368,020 2,452,054
Najill Corporate entities 66,719 -
NEYLH Public sector entities - 135,290
R SR ER T Central governments 499,888 -
Hih Others 1,469,339 1,025,720

3,403,966 3,613,064

A B ISR ZEEA AT ¢ The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised as
follows:
RNEH RANT]
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
FET FHxT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 3,613,064 2,052,552
b )i Additions 4,263,000 3,134,672
2E (HE REE) Disposals (sale and redemption) (4,620,012) (1,811,701
PEEAH Amortisation (1,088) 8,539
NFEED) Change in fair value 143,631 227,272
NS, ZE 5T Exchange difference 5,371 1,730
FT+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 3,403,966 3,613,064

EBRBIEZFHR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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(b) Held-to-maturity securities

AEFRAAR]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FHERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
1R PEEER NS K Y R 551 55 Debt securities at amortised cost
FEBLM Listed in Hong Kong 1,014,324 1,166,552
TEBRIN T Listed outside Hong Kong 3,024,472 2,244,441
4,038,796 3,410,993
E| i Unlisted 3,994,337 2,407,005
BAEZREIHIEA L Total held-to-maturity securities 8,033,133 5,817,998
LA TE — 55 255 Market value of listed securities — held-to-maturity 4,181,338 3,504,167

B RITIZERI D AT A E 2 BIE 5

Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of issuers

IR as follows:
AERRAAR]
The Group and the Company
2010 2009
FHERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RIT RE M FHLAE Banks and other financial institutions 5,742,185 3,939,368
Najilk Corporate entities 623,601 622,626
NEWA Public sector entities 863,630 715,548
R IR B Central governments 737,822 293,287
Hih Others 65,895 247,169
8,033,133 5,817,998

FAZRHNEFRRFBRNT -

The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as

follows:
AERFKAAT]
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F+—H—H ASs at 1 January 5,817,998 5,614,666
P Additions 4,341,842 2,923,038
JEz[E] Redemption (2,130,621) (2,731,226)
ik Amortisation (7,093) (2,838)
G H ZH Exchange difference 11,007 14,358
F+=A=+—H As at 31 December 8,033,133 5,817,998
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22. B AT’ HE 22. Investment in subsidiaries
/N

The Company
2010 2009
Fi#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
e LRk - KAME Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
RIENGZ e Due from a subsidiary 3,102,572 1,630,520
3,205,632 1,733,580

MEARMRFALEARLEEERE - HiZ  The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has
TAFIEILE - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.

F_Z—=ZF+_A=+—8 WEARMNF¥E The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2010 are:

no fixed term of

LU

B SRR B S 3 5 FE2WF B &17/ BIAEMBRAIHE P SRBRARAX

Name Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued /registered capital Effective equity held

BRIRIBER B TR ELE 1,000,000 7T 100%
BRAF] RIS EBRTEREE ST

HKMC Mortgage Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 ordinary 100%
Management and servicing share each
Limited

RYZ S BERR B RIB UK ARM 1127 90%
AR AR S JEMARAR

Bauhinia HKMC PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered capital 90%
Corporation Limited business

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



23. HEEHLFRT

23. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

NEH
The Group
2010 2009
FHERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 115,190 111,989
HBRBIUE R & A Share of profit, net of tax 2,259 1,922
SNTCH ZER (BHE31) Exchange differences (Note 31) 13,108 1,279
HbhmA s — AT EER Other equity movement — fair value reserve (Note 31)
(F$E31) 163 -
F+=-HA=+—H As at 31 December 130,720 115,190
PN
The Company
2010 2009
FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETmRG - BANME Unlisted shares, at cost 120,554 120,554

FoE-TE+-A=1—A

» FERE SRR

The details of the jointly controlled entity as at 31 December 2010 are:

EFMT
BERA
JEM AR A FE2WH BAITIRZAHEE Fs AR (n 251 L@ A ot
E7 Place of Principal Nominal value of Class of % of ordinary shares
Name incorporation activities issued capital shares held directly held
Cagamas HKMC IR LB R S Bm 12T LBk 50%
Berhad _ BREEST 1T _
Cagamas HKMC Malaysia Mortgage guaranty RM100 million of Ordinary 50%
Berhad business RM1 each
NG A F A BRI SSRGS A 20 T The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
interest in a jointly controlled entity is as follows:
2010 2009
FHERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0 Assets 131,217 115,928
5 Liabilities (497) (738)
R 5% R Share of net assets 130,720 115,190
WA Income 3,927 3,389
FE N A Al Share of profit for the year 2,259 1,922
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24. BEIE B = 24. Fixed assets
NEH
The Group
PAERE
R RERE
Tk Office
#f&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and EE fig Motor St
improvement fixtures Computers vehicle Total
Fi#ET FHET FiET FiET FHET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F==ThFE—A—H Net book amount as at
K T8 4 3 1 January 2009 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
AE Additions 1,137 994 15,714 - 17,845
#r18 (FHE9) Depreciation charge
(Note 9) (1,627) (725) (8,482) (56) (10,890)
F=FFNF+-_A=+—H Netbook amount as at
K T 4 251 31 December 2009 2,217 1,380 17,641 19 21,257
NE Additions 77 259 8,530 - 8,866
18 (FHE9) Depreciation charge
(Note 9) (2,016) (923) (9,970) (19) (12,928)
HNTSC R Exchange adjustments 7 17 33 - 57
F=F—-FF#+=-A=+—H Net book amount as at
T SR 31 December 2010 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
F=-F—-FF+=-HA=1+—H Asat 31 December 2010
BENET Cost 9,273 7,269 133,196 226 149,964
ZiH47IH Accumulated depreciation (8,988) (6,536) (116,962) (226) (132,712)
/SR Net book amount 285 733 16,234 - 17,252

FBRIBIEF AR AT THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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Z/NS]|
The Company
PAEEE
R REE
THEYL Office
#f&  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture and B figg Motor b5t
improvement fixtures Computers vehicle Total
F#ET FHET F#ET FHET F#ET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F_E=FTNhF—HA—H Net book amount as at
IIQETEE 1 January 2009 2,707 1,111 10,409 75 14,302
NE Additions 601 123 14,387 — 15,111
Eiall=! Depreciation charge (1,480) (553) (8,324) (56) (10,413)
F=FFNF+=-A=+—H Netbook amount as at
JIqEDEl 31 December 2009 1,828 681 16,472 19 19,000
NE Additions 72 240 8,490 — 8,802
#7IR Depreciation charge (1,718) (568) (9,517) (19) (11,822)
F=F—FF+=-HA=1+—H Net book amount as at
R TET /R 31 December 2010 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
F=-F—-FE1+=H As at 31 December 2010
Sqr=|gl
PRAE Cost 8,711 6,345 131,778 226 147,060
ESREinll= Accumulated depreciation (8,529) (5,992 (116,333) (226) (131,080)
MR &R Net book amount 182 353 15,445 - 15,980
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25. F{HERIN « IRE R HEMPBI™ 25. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

NERA ZN/N|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FiET FAT Fi#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W el 7= Repossessed assets 3,861 3,317 3,861 3,317
Nal2 RS Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
PR g () Dividend receivable from
RIS available-for-sale
investments (listed) 14,032 15,530 14,032 15,530
Efh Others 9,016 12,998 10,577 17,084
27,659 32,595 29,220 36,681
26. P fTMRIN » BT TR 26. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
H it 73 f other liabilities
& VNN
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Rz M T R Rz A5F FF 32 Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 113,043 126,205 146,710 172,018
FLAth SRR Other payable - - 467,734 591,108
H bt f Other liabilities 4,163,057 4,133,740 4,163,057 4,133,740
Efhik s Other provisions 15,037 14,232 14,765 14,083

4,291,137 4,274,177 4,792,266 4,910,949

EMAGmRERAT S = +_AK=_2ZM Other liabilities represented the deferred consideration used for credit

F-AEABEITHX ([F8FX]) BA®WE  enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government of the

RIRIB BT RN {E TR HE R IBER M © Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") in December 2003 and
January 2004.

HE-FT-—FTF+-A=+—H ' AKXFMA Upto 31 December 2010, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage loans
Bauhinia MBS Limited & 30128 iz IE  to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which, the Company continues
IEAE - HUSmEBEREFES 5/EE - # to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the
INRIBITRO [TTRAS 2 - ARF[EMA  guarantee and continuing involvement. A liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited
{3k | FRIA—2E RN {<f Bauhinia MBS Limited #)  shown as “Other payable” has also been recognised. As at 31 December 2010,
fifie T2F—FF+=-_A=+—H AKX’ 7FM other payable was HK$467,734,000 (2009: HK$591,108,000) in the Company's
SRR A E Ath 5 5 50 467,734,000 70 statement of financial position.
ZETHEF ¢ 591,108,000/ 7T) °
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27. REAGRBERER™ 27. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
ARERARAAR]
The Group and the Company

RERRART
The Group and the Company

2010 2009
£ BRI k= ] EH BIRR g2
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FHET TR FiET FHBT FHT FHET
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RFEARFR T Provision for unearned premium 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
ROREAREF Provision for outstanding claims
- BEER/(RE) BER - claims reported/(recovery) - (164) 164 2,091 (27) 2,118
- BEFEERBRER - claims incurred but not reported 84,611 14,771 69,840 87,800 25,390 62,410
84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
1,773,665 204,891 1,568,774 1,462,318 266,101 1,196,217
(@) RAFEBRFREZHOFAOT (@) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned premiums
AEHRAAT REFRARTA
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2010 2009
EH BiRE ki EH BRE B
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FiET FET FET THT FET FTHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—H—8H As at 1 January 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689 829,370 311,253 518,117
BEUER SR (MHE14) Premiums written (Note 14) 862,282 70,925 791,357 839,042 54,392 784,650
EAHIRE (£ 14) Premiums earned (Note 14) (545,655) (121,379) (424,276) (295,985)  (124,907)  (171,078)
F+=—A=+—8H As at 31 December 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770 1,372,427 240,738 1,131,689
(b) RRARBEZZHSMTUMT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding claims
AEF RANR] REFRAAT]
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
2010 2009
ES 1] BRE B EH BIRE B
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
FET TR FiET FHT T FHET
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—A—8 As at 1 January 89,891 25,363 64,528 79,370 37,189 42,181
BfTER Claims paid - 1,175 (1,175) (1,804) (1,969) 165
B ERR Claims recovery 508 202 306 1,207 674 568
B E R (HE14) Claims incurred (Note 14)
- BERRHER - claims reported (2,599) (1,515) (1,084) 2,500 1,310 1,190
- BH{EREIREZR - claims incurred but not reported (3,189) (10,618) 7,429 8,618  (11,841) 20,459
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 84,611 14,607 70,004 89,891 25,363 64,528
c) fafiEzx 2N (c) Liability adequacy test

HITARTRMAN - ZRLHEY
NenERRRVLEBEZRAZRRINE
MENINMGET NAERT_F—
FER-FEAFT-A=T 8
REHE R BRSNS -

The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December 2010 and
2009, the Group’s insurance liabilities are adequate.

—Z—-ZFFR ANNUAL REPORT 2010
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28. Debt securities issued

AEHA RAT]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT FHET FHAIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
YRR A T MR HY Debt securities carried at amortised
fRFIES cost
S TAITNIGRS DIP notes 4,118,849 4,218,169 4,397,000 4,218,169
BRI AR5 K BY Total debt securities carried at
RSB B AN amortised cost 4,118,849 4,218,169 4,397,000 4,218,169
BEH A TFEI A Debt securities designated
HY 1R SIS as fair value hedge
R LRIt S DIP notes 20,774,658 24,013,513 20,774,658 24,013,513
TEMRFRITITN R RBIP and other notes
H Mz 699,802 1,760,614 699,802 1,760,614
FRERGR S R TIT RIS MTN notes 11,597,306 11,656,629 11,597,306 11,656,629
FEE R A TER R Total debt securities designated
(e Ik as fair value hedge 33,071,766 = 37,430,756 33,071,766 = 37,430,756
TFatRINHEE S Debt securities designated as at
LAAFEELITAN fair value through profit or
IR R SFIE S loss upon initial recognition
RS T EITRIGS DIP notes 1,756,638 2,329,306 1,756,638 2,329,306
TEMRF LTI R RBIP and other notes
H s 180,482 167,341 180,482 167,341
FERFF AT TITRIGS MTN notes - 349,501 - 349,501
TN I E R Total debt securities designated as at
AN FEEZELITA fair value through profit or loss upon
B A SIS BN initial recognition 1,937,120 2,846,148 1,937,120 2,846,148
B RITHRSIE S S5 Total debt securities issued 39,127,735 44,495,073 39,405,886 44,495,073

TER AEATHNRBANETZE S
B 4 3 #91,074,000,000% T (ZF T N F
2,272,000,000% 7T) & MMMEL R TFEELITA
Hizk o ZESBACRZ AFEENRTEERE
RIERAS o THIEHIARIEE N A A FEELITA
Hzs M & B UK EERASFAREES ONE T
B ERRZR MRS R A A S50/ 612,080,000
BT (ZEZFNAF : 581,052,000 7T) °

ZERENARNFEIRN SR A FORAEMNE

REFSRERARZER

Rz o

During the year, the Group designated on initial recognition HK$1,074,000,000
(2009: HK$2,272,000,000) nominal value of such financial liabilities as at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value changes are attributable to
changes in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$612,080,000 (2009: HK$581,052,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at maturity
to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at
fair value.

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

AREH AAR]
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fi#ET FAT FHET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 44,023,620 40,967,452 44,023,620 41,412,787
KIT Issuance 8,279,703 22,688,680 10,103,499 29,092,736
R T Less: Redemption (13,838,443) (19,645,595) (15,384,088) (26,494,986)
INTISE L ZE 5T Exchange difference 5,591 13,083 5,591 13,083
HNHMEEBEN Total nominal value 38,470,471 44,023,620 38,748,622 44,023,620
TR BEASER > Unamortised portion of discount (697,973) (665,658) (697,973) (665,658)
NEEIFE Fair value adjustment 1,355,237 1,137,111 1,355,237 1,137,111
F+=-—A=+—H As at 31 December 39,127,735 44,495,073 39,405,886 44,495,073
NEERITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:
M BN
The Group The Company
BEIA THES RS BEIA FHEES hEAf
i Tt RFTiHH it Tt Tt
DIP RBIP MTN DIP RBIP MTN
i FiET Fi#T Fi#T Fi# FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEAITSMEE Amount issued at nominal value 7,104,000 - 1,175,703 8,927,796 - 1,175,703
B UERFRI Consideration received 7,018,267 - 1,175,268 8,842,026 - 1,175,268
BB A ITHRS IS BERE AT TE - All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group, and are
MATZERFZIESHEERE—REZREKIE  issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and refinancing.
HERAE -

—F—
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29. ERITIRIBIES

29. Mortgage-backed securities issued

AEHA
The Group
2010 2009
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRRREH P A T MR RIRIBIE 5 MBS at amortised cost
IS 1T R MBS Programme - 60,305
Bauhinia #Z4&1E 54t 11 X Bauhinia MBS Programme 805,650 990,815
805,650 1,051,120
BEA A FEM FHIIRIBIES MBS designated as fair value hedge
Bauhinia #&3&1E 56 114 Bauhinia MBS Programme 724,099 969,274
BRI TIZBIE A 240 (H)E36) Total MBS issued (Note 36) 1,529,749 2,020,394
F—HA—H As at 1 January 1,976,121 3,147,577
A ] Less: Redemption (470,471)  (1,171,456)
BB NMNE Total nominal value 1,505,650 1,976,121
NEERE Fair value adjustment 24,099 44,273
F+=—A=+—8H As at 31 December 1,529,749 2,020,394

FIBRBIE A NFEARKIKBRE  HR
MARARWERBRERASRERSM AT
1% 8 5T 5K 4B A 71 1,185,520,00078 70 (ZEE A,
£ ¢ 1,905,793,0007% 7T) E{EN AT A ITHRBIE
FHHAm ( [E36) o B RITRBIES BFH
805,650,000 7T (ZFEAF : 1,276,120,00078

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$1,185,520,000 (2009: HK$1,905,793,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 36). Out of the total MBS issued,
nominal value of HK$805,650,000 (2009: HK$1,276,120,000) are guaranteed by

the Company.

7C) NEE R AN AHELR o
30. ig & 30. Share capital
ZT-TER
—EENF
2010 and 2009
FERT
HK$'000
EE Authorised
BRREE 187TH 3012 E BAR 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BERITRER Issued and fully paid
FARE(E 178 7TH) 20{Z AR E AR 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000

EBRBIEZFHR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED
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31. Hibfig & 31. Other reserves
AEHA
The Group
REiER  AFEHES TR SCHES
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation BER
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT=FFNF—H—A As at 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371) (66,666) (8,557) 26,951
At EF SR A FEE D)« Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- REYW P — unrealised net gains - 227,272 - - 227,272
— HEREI (FHE11) — realisation on disposal
(Note 11) - (3,522) - = (3,522)
— BRI (£ 13(0)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (37,311) = = (37,311)
— PfE4H * — amortisation* - 2,381 - - 2,381
b P i Cash flow hedges
- EETNERIA - net gains arising from
B X = AE AU hedges recognised
AN directly in equity - - 25,126 - 25,126
— I (FfE 13(b)) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) = - (4,145) - (4,145)
b= il Currency translation difference
- BT — subsidiary - - - 158 158
— HEHEHISEAR (FHE23) — jointly controlled entity
(Note 23) - = = 1,279 1,279
EhamEBRA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 1,437 211,238
IR B & A3 T4 B HA Transfer of 50% of net risk
MBS AR ZR AT 50% premium earned from retained
EXNREESR profits to contingency reserve 76,313 - - - 76,313
XS A Rtk Bl 2R B i Al Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - - (10,025)

*ARBY ST A SIS R R E /A 2RI B

A TR ER R A o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
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A&
The Group
NEeiEE ATFERES pOpalieA-3 SCHAES
Contingency Fair value Hedging  Translation SAN
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FAT FHT FHT FHT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F==ZNF+=A=+—H/ Asat 31 December 2009/
—F-FF—HF—H 1 January 2010 189,833 167,449 (45,685) (7,120) 304,477
A EIFAFR AT EES) : Change in fair value of available-
for-sale securities:
- RAEY W F — unrealised net gains - 143,631 - - 143,631
- eI (FHE11) - realisation on disposal
(Note 11) = (40,554) = = (40,554)
— BRI (£ 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = (17,307) = = (17,307)
- REIWE B A — — unrealised net gains — jointly
HEEHISE R (HE23) controlled entity (Note 23) - 163 - - 163
— P * — amortisation* - 1,809 - - 1,809
by b i Cash flow hedges
- BEETREFHIAEX - net gains arising from
AR W E A hedges recognised
directly in equity - - 26,340 - 26,340
- AR TFEES - fair value changes
transferred to income
Statement = = (79) = (79)
— B (KEE 13(b) - tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,333) - (4,333)
SrmC R ZE Currency translation difference
- WEAR] — subsidiary = = = 3,878 3,878
— FEEHEHISE 4 (FE 23) - jointly controlled entity
(Note 23) = = = 13,108 13,108
Hih 2 mEBA Other comprehensive income - 87,742 21,928 16,986 126,656
F R B e A F 1k B R R Transfer of 50% of net risk
RUBE AR 2% 22N A9 50% premium earned from retained
Z NG hE & profits to contingency reserve 260,282 - - - 260,282
X R B ERE R Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (12,680) - - = (12,680)
F=F-FF+-A As at 31 December 2010
Eqr=[g] 437,435 255,191 (23,757) 9,866 678,735

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

*ARBY ST AMEHE SRR E A ERIEIES
B TR ER R o
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/NG|
The Company
MEEEE AFEES X% &
Contingency Fair value Hedging =k
reserve reserve reserve Total
AT FHT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=EZNF—HA—H As at 1 January 2009 123,545 (21,371)  (66,666) 35,508
At EIRSRAFEZ ) ©  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities:
- RIS FET — unrealised net gains - 227,272 - 227,272
- HERZEI (FHE11) — realisation on disposal (Note 11) - (3,522) - (3,522)
— B (FEE13(0)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = 37,311) - (37,311)
— PfEEH * — amortisation* - 2,381 - 2,381
L& X Cash flow hedges
- EETNERIA — net gains arising from hedges
B = Ay e e am recognised directly in equity - - 25,126 25,126
— B (K= 13(0)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) = - (4,145) (4,145)
EhemEmBA Other comprehensive income - 188,820 20,981 209,801
AR RN R E R Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
MBS AR ZR BT 50% earned from retained profits to
EXNREIESR contingency reserve 76,313 - - 76,313
X ERTE B EREBIET] Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (10,025) - - (10,025)
FoEFAF+=-HA=+—H/ Asat31December 2009/1 January 2010
—EF—FF—H—H 189,833 167,449 (45,685) 311,597
AHHEITAM AT EES) :  Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities:
- REI W2 — unrealised net gains - 143,631 - 143,631
- HERZEIN (FHE11) — realisation on disposal (Note 11) - (40,554) - (40,554)
— I (P 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - (17,307) - (17,307)
— P — amortisation* - 1,809 - 1,809
P& X Cash flow hedges
- HEETNERIA - net gains arising from hedges
B X = A A M s AT recognised directly in equity - - 26,340 26,340
- WARERN N TFEZES - fair value changes transferred to
income statement - - 79 (79)
— I (B 13(b)) — tax effect (Note 13(b)) - - (4,333) (4,333)
HAb 2 EHRA Other comprehensive income - 87,579 21,928 109,507
FBIRER & A3 T4 B A HA Transfer of 50% of net risk premium
MBS AR ZR AT 50% earned from retained profits to
ENRIESR contingency reserve 260,282 - - 260,282
XS ARk B 2R B a7 Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits (12,680) - - (12,680)
F=E—-FF+=-"H=1+—H Asat 31 December 2010 437,435 255,028  (23,757) 668,706

*AREY ST A SIS R R ERE ZRIHIES

A TR ER RS o

transferred to held-to-maturity securities.

* amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
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32. EEXRATITIIMME K S 32. Material related party transactions

@ ARBAMEERKMINCESEEA

(@) The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong Kong as

BFRAE - RABRSARALITLY

RS

SEEemERER (FE2ER]
BRI R EER KBNS E
& BERERMEENHRS TRAHRR
FHERAGRSARMITE REERIER
% MR A RAOERAER R E R
SKARIB A ©

SINCESBEIBESERRAL AR
30012 BT EIMEDE o T2 —F4F
TZA=+—H HERERT (=%
FNF k) BHEZZE—ZFTF+=A
=t+—B AR TEBINCELZRE
WIER BB SIZHB T (ZETNF
F) -+ AR BlE W K A Bl E H G SR
N15412%TT (ZETNE  1.732%8
TT) I DT

SMBRRINZZEBREEEREE
MR AR REESRTT / BRHEFA
FIGR AR 1B ST R R IB R L -

SRR ARNR ZBIENFRAFMA
TTROZIBIE A iR R R (HHE33) -

FA - BT ERRZZMITERNRARME
R BRAE R A L R4 R 45 /RILE B4
= U

() FEBRASZH

Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company had entered into
various transactions with related parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA"), the
government-related entities and the Government of HKSAR included
subscribing to the custodian and clearing agent services provided
by the Central Moneymarkets Unit (“CMU") Service operated by
the HKMA, renting office premises from The Financial Secretary
Incorporated (“FSI”) and purchasing of mortgage loans from the
FSI.

The Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the Company
with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and there was no
outstanding balance (2009: nil) as at 31 December 2010. The Company
held investment of HK$500 million (2009: nil) in the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Bills (“"EFB") as at 31 December 2010. In 2010, the
Company purchased about HK$154 million (2009: HK$173 million) of
mortgage loans from the FSI.

Transactions with the subsidiary included the provision of mortgage
insurance cover for mortgage loans purchased by the subsidiary
from the Approved Sellers/Services in the course of its ordinary
business.

Transactions with the SPEs included acting as the guarantor for the
MBS issued by the SPEs (Note 33).

The amount of income and expenses arising from these transactions
during the year, the balances of the amounts due to and from the
relevant related parties were as follows:

(i) Income and expenses for the year:

REH
R R BUR AR R 144
The Group
The Government and
government-related entities

2010 2009

FiET FHT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEWA — INCESESE Interest income — EFB 274 -
HipZH — B TEHRR Other expenses — CMU service

SEE REIRS 914 832

DRE —THE Premises — rental 6,368 6,368
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(i) TTZA=+—RH4%R (i) Balances as at 31 December:
AEH YN
The Group The Company
B Bt LA HRFE
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
FET FAT FET TET FET FTEr FTERT FEL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RIMUEE /A RIZIN Amounts due from a group

(H$E22) company (Note 22) - - - - 3,102,572 1,630,520 - -
NATEFARFIL  Amounts due to group companies - - - - - - 32,800 40,992
ELM R AR Other payable (Note 26)

(BiYE 26) - - - - - - 467,734 591108
Hb s (HiE26)  Otherliabilities (Note 26) 4,163,057 4133740 4,163,057 4,133,740 - - - -
RIBIEH 1T L Financial guarantees under the

[UEEELES MBS programmes - - - - - - 805,868 1,277,647
MBSHRAR B2 Total risk-in-force - - - = 544,921 220,140 - =

(b) TEEEEAR (b) Key management personnel
FEEBRNEEXEEAENAORA Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility
TR BERERIASERA LS A for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
T BREEEREREREAR directly or indirectly, including directors and senior officers.
AFEEFEERREAANTMNEE Key management personnel compensation for the year comprises:

2010 2009

FERT FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e MEAMRHRE AET Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 13,678 13,120
BHEEER Post-employment benefits 951 942
14,629 14,062
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33. IFHIR AT RIEFHt
AARBEARIFIRAT @ BIEBIZBIUE AR
(85—) AR A% Bauhinia MBS Limited #7174z
BRFASIERTE  AmMAIZAREFIRAR
HIHZIBIIRAS - RS RIS BAXKRIE
TIREEMEHEEBE T AR M S IRIT TN L
1EFIA ©

HARRNRRILE BB IRAS WRIl 2 REH
B LR R E B LR LD K KB HRES -
SEHAIFBINRIBIRAS -

HANAHE AR X ILIRIBRAS -
B LERAE R X —250 (MaFLREBD) Rk
K@k - ABDREIEHIN - M BEPL EHRIAR
BIRASR - RERBIRESRIEES5EE

EM SRR RIIA

REPDHLE FRIRAR M AN S 2 E AL LTINS
HHIRIBIRAS - NARRIERIIZBIES °

RN R B G LS SIEHHE B DR E B R &
RE - MEHRIIAERLL B BELIEEIAR D
RAGREFRINEE D M BA = A FE

HE EN2RERS) 2BRE12SHFEKE —
FRARIAE - HFIRAFSHIRA R KRR
FE RERRFIR A R R IR A AR - MR & 1t
ANFRAR - AT HREMSRRNREFZRE
AR~ o TRERFKLL FEIRARIM
BETARAMSHRAREIERHIN - BEREE O
NitRER2) ERF12SMEHREZSITALZS
WS RRKRAIRIBITTAE L REER LR ©

33. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE") namely HKMC Funding
Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise mortgage
portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two SPEs. These
transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the mortgage portfolio
concerned from the Company’s statement of financial position.

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual right to
receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise transfers
mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred but control is retained. These
mortgage portfolio are recognised on the statement of financial position to the
extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES, that do not qualify
for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of the fair
value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised and the part
that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK(SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires consolidation
of SPES when the substance of the relationships between the SPE and the
reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by the reporting entity.
This results in consolidating back the transferred assets to the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following summarises the outstanding
principal balances of the mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES that were
derecognised from the Company’s statement of financial position but were
consolidated back to the consolidated statement of financial position as a
result of HK(SIC) INT-12.

2010 2009

FHET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ERIEBIESRE (B—)BR2A7  HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited - 59,829

Bauhinia MBS Limited Bauhinia MBS Limited 717,786 1,254,856
B FRIZ A RIRIBT R Mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPES (Note 20(a))

A& (MEE20()) 717,786 1,314,685

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



135

34, %8 34. Commitments
(@) ®A (a) Capital
AREH AAR]

The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FAT F#ET AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEHUERRITS Authorised but not contracted for 19,166 19,643 19,107 19,352

(b) £EHL
T2HRMAR - RETAEIHNEEMR
20 ZE i EY R SR AR 2 5 33

(b) Operating lease

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed as

DTN follows:
REH] ZA/NG|
The Group The Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
FHET FHTT FHET FHAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
DAREY Office premises
TN F—5F not later than one year 318 7,264 - 6,368
LT —FETZTAHE later than one year and not later
than five years - 306 - =
318 7,570 - 6,368

FRE  ANARSMB A /K IERLT
A= FMEY  MERE R
JERAF £ 7,833,0008 T - AT A
REVEBBHNAED -

Subsequent to the year end, the Company entered into a lease for
a period of 3 years with the FSI by which the FSI let to the Company
office premises in Hong Kong at a yearly rental of HK$7,833,000.
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35. IZIBIRE AL F
ARTSHAEBRRATNTIESERR -
BIRMLSS -

KER

F_E—ZFTF+=A=1+—H ' NRERIFIY
NI7612B T (ZBEZNF 1492128 T) * H
2428 (ZEFNF - 33.312% ) BE MR
EBRRARIEBRRE - MAR RN E1T#E
RT152ZB T (ZEZTNF - 1159125 7T) B
KB o

R T 152128 T AR RIAE X R R AR
B 19128 TR B IRARF Y R AR 5 37 B oFE T
1= PR AR R BHAR B B 22 HEE Hh 8] )R B XUR (T
A MARBRRERHNE - BFEERTHR
B R.B RS FN AT AR AR A RUBS

36. EIRPHE=

RN Al B B E R = IR ERRSE S A TR
HITRRLE - UBIEA RIEAFMITRIATE XTTEE
1R AR RIZIBIE 5 o AT RIEERIRIRE
RABTEXFRAR (ERRIEZBIEARNE
NARBERBLRA) AL —HUIZBUE SRR
NREELNR - 1TEZZEENERPE R
o

35. Mortgage insurance business

The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-sharing basis
with its approved reinsurers.

As 31 December 2010, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$17.6 billion
(2009: HK$14.92 billion) of which HK$2.4 billion (2009: HK$3.33 billion) was ceded
to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$15.2 billion (2009: HK$11.59
billion) was retained by the Company.

Out of the HK$15.2 billion of risk-in-force retained by the Company, the excess
loss of HK$1.9 billion of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-
of-loss reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions,
and the Company retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss
and remote risk portions.

36. Pledged assets

SPESs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by way
of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in accordance with
the provisions under the relevant securitisation programmes. The security
trustee appointed under the relevant securitisation programmes will enforce
the securities over the relevant pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in
the case of guaranteed MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment
under any series of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default
in respect of any series of MBS.

REH
The Group
2010 2009
FHET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHIREE Assets pledged

RITEERF Time deposits with banks 9,567 28,317
IS5 Investment securities 278,151 -
BB RAEE Mortgage portfolio 1,185,520 1,905,793
RIAIE Interest receivable 31 267
1,473,269 1,934,377

FHRMSA 5 Secured liabilities
B AITIRBIE S (KE29) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 29) 1,529,749 2,020,394

EBRBIUEZFHFR 2R THE HONG KONG MORTGAGE CORPORATION LIMITED



B IRIB I A & BIERFIE A RIIKM AT /0IE
HIRIBERAA (HE33) - BELLIRIBE A
AIRERRESESSEHET [RAS 47
MEIA R = (FHE26) ©

1,800 5B T (ZEFNAF : 570 578 70) KT 5
GRERBFRITENTERBERLSOR

U °

37. BiEMEZIRE
EERT-_ETE——FNAT+_HBIAMS
R o

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio recorded in
the SPE’s book (Note 33) and the transferred mortgage portfolio continued to
be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to the extent of the guarantee
and continuing involvement (Note 26).

Time deposits of HK$18 million (2009: HK$5.7 million) are pledged as security
deposits with a bank for mortgage guarantee business in China.

37. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April
2011.
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